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PART

Item Business

Overview

Cohen Steers Inc CNS Delaware corporation formed in 2004 together with its wholly-owned subsidiaries is

leading global investment manager focused on global real estate securities global listed infrastructure real assets large cap

value stocks and preferred securities CNS and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the Company we us or

our We also manage alternative investment strategies for qualified investors such as hedged real estate securities portfolios

and private real estate strategies We serve institutional and individual investors around the world

We completed the initial public offering of our common stock in 2004 Prior to the completion of the initial public

offering and pursuant 10 reorganization into holding company structure CNS became the parent holding company of

Cohen Steers Capital Management Inc CSCM our asset management subsidiary and together with our direct and

indirect subsidiaries sicceeded to the business conducted by CSCM and its subsidiaries since 1986

Our revenue is derived primarily from investment advisory administration distribution and service fees received from

open-end and closed-end mutual funds and investment advisory fees received from institutional accounts These fees are

based on contractually specified percentages of the assets of each clients portfolio Revenue fluctuates with changes in the

total value of the portfulios and is recognized over the period that the assets are managed

At December 31 2012 we managed $45.8 billion in assets $24.9 billion in 106 institutional account portfolios for

institutional investors $13.0 billion in 14 open-end mutual funds and $8.0 billion in nine closed-end mutual funds

The assets we manage increased 11% to $45.8 billion at December 31 2012 from $41.3 billion at December 31 2011

Changes in the assets we manage can come from two sources-inflows or outflows and market appreciation or

depreciation The $4.5 billion increase in the assets we managed from 2011 to 2012 was the result of market appreciation of

$7.1 billion partially cffset by net outflows of $2.6 billion

Account Types

We manage three types of accounts institutional accounts open-end mutual funds and closed-end mutual funds

InstitutionalAccounts The 106 institutional accounts for which we are the investment adviser represent portfolios of

securities we manage fur institutional clients We manage the assets in each institutional account in manner tailored to the

inVestment preferences of that individual client as defined within each clients individual investment advisory agreement Our

investment advisory agreements with the institutional account clients are generally terminable upon 60 days notice In the

years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 investment advisory fees from our institutional accounts totaled

approximately $88.6 million $89.6 million and $62.6 million respectively and accounted for 36% 40% and 37%
respectively of investrient advisory and administrative fee revenue

Subadvisory assets which may be sold to retail investors are included in our institutional account assets Subadvisory

assets represent accounts for which we have been named as subadviser by the investment adviser to that account As

subadviser we have responsibility for managing the portfolios investments while the investment adviser oversees our

performance as subadviser

Open-End Mutu21 Funds The 14 open-end mutual funds for which we are the investment adviser offer and issue new
shares continuously as funds are invested and redeem shares when funds are withdrawn The share price for purchases and

redemptions of each of the open-end mutual funds is determined by each funds net asset value which is calculated at the end

of each business day The net asset value per share is the current value of funds assets less liabilities divided by the funds

total shares outstanding

Investment advisory fees for the open-end mutual funds vary based on each funds investment objective and strategy

fees charged by other comparable mutual funds and the nature of the investors to whom the mutual fund is offered In

addition we receive separate fee for providing administrative services to each open-end mutual fund at rate that is

designed to reimburse is for the cost of providing these services Each of the open-end mutual funds
pays us monthly

administration fee based on percentage of the funds average assets under management In the
years ended December 31

2012 2011 and 2010 investment advisory and administrative fees from our open-end mutual funds totaled approximately



$96.3 million $78.6 million and $61.1 million respectively and accounted for 39% 35% and 36% respectively of

investment advisory and administrative fee revenue

Our investment advisory and administration agreements with the open-end mutual funds are generally terminable upon

60 or fewer days notice and each investment advisory agreement including the fees payable thereunder is subject to annual

approval after the first two years by the open-end mutual funds board as well as by majority of the directors who are not

interested persons as defined by the Investment Company Act of 1940 the Investment Company Act

Closed-End Mutual Funds The nine closed-end mutual funds for which we are the investment adviser are registered

investment companies that have issued fixed number of shares through public offerings These shares are listed on the New

York Stock Exchange and cannot be redeemed by their shareholders The trading price of the shares of closed-end mutual

fund is determined by supply and demand in the marketplace which means the shares may trade at premium or discount to

the net asset value of the hinds

Investment advisory fees for the closed-end mutual funds vary based on each funds investment objective and strategy

fees charged by other comparable mutual funds and prevailing market conditions at the time each closed-end mutual fund

initially offered its shares to the public In addition we receive separate fee for providing administrative services to seven

of the nine closed-end mutual funds at rate that is designed to reimburse us for the cost of providing these services For

services under the investment advisory and administration agreements closed-end mutual funds pay us monthly fee based

on percentage of the funds average assets under management In the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

investment advisory and administrative fees from our closed-end mutual funds totaled approximately $59.7 million $53.8

million and $46.1 million respectively and accounted for 24% 24% and 27% respectively of investment advisory and

administrative fee revenue

Each of our investment advisory agreements with closed-end mutual fund is subject following the initial two year

term to annual approval by the mutual funds board of directors including at least majority of the independent directors

Our investment advisory and administration agreements with the closed-end mutual funds are generally terminable upon 60

or fewer days notice

Portfolio Consultinç and Other Services We provide services in connection with model-based strategies MBS
accounts As portfolio consultant for number of MBS accounts we construct portfolios of securities that fulfill the

investment objective of the mandate and supply models on regular basis As of December 31 2012 we provided such

advisory consulting services to MBS accounts with aggregate assets of $4.5 billion These assets are not included in the assets

we manage

We maintain two proprietary indices Cohen Steers Realty Majors Index RMP and Cohen Steers Global Realty

Majors Index CRM RvIP is the basis for the iShares Cohen Steers Realty Majors Index Fund ICF sponsored by

BlackRock Institutional Trust Company N.A GRM is the basis for Cohen Steers Global Realty Majors Fund GRI
sponsored by ALPS Fund Services Inc and Claymore Global Real Estate ETF CGR sponsored by Claymore

Investments Inc We earn licensing fee based on the funds assets for the use of our indices which assets as of

December 31 2012 were approximately $2.8 billion These assets are not included in the assets we manage

As portfolio consullant we provide several services in connection with investment products such as unit investment

trusts UlTs UIT is registered investment company that holds portfolio of securities that generally does not change

during the life of the product generally two to five years except that the sponsor of the UIT may sell portfolio securities

under certain narrowly defined circumstances As portfolio consultant to number of UlTs we construct portfolio of

securities that we believe is well suited to satisfy the investment objective of the UIT We also provide ongoing portfolio

monitoring services related to the portfolio Finally we provide license to certain firms to use our name in connection with

certain of their investment products At December 31 2012 we provided such advisory consulting services to UITs with

aggregate assets of $1.3 billion These assets are not included in the assets we manage

Our fee schedules for these relationships vary
based on the type of services we provide for each relationship

Our Investment Process Our investment process is based on fundamental portfolio and company research Our

investment committees and portfolio managers formulate investment strategies that take into account the economy industry

fundamentals and valuation for each of our portfolio strategies An investment committee oversees the portfolio manager and

research team responsible for each of our portfolio strategies Martin Cohen and Robert Steers our Co-Chairmen and Co

Chief Executive Officers and Joseph Harvey our president head our investment committees



Our research analysts must subject the companies that they cover to detailed fundamental analysis They focus on

companys management business plan balance sheet industry position and corporate governance We also require our

research analysts to spend significant amount of time interacting with and visiting company management as well as talking

to competitors vendos analysts and other industry participants Investment performance is primary determinant of

incentive compensation for our investment professionals

We have developed valuation models that are unique to each of our portfolio strategies These models have been shown

to be highly effective identifying relative value We use our valuation models daily to build and manage portfolios with the

strict discipline to which we adhere

Each of the portthlios that we currently manage adheres to one of the following investment strategies which may

employ leverage

U.S Realty Total Return seeks total return by investing in diversified portfolio of U.S real estate investment trusts

REITs and other real estate securities

U.S Realty Focis seeks maximum total return by investing in concentrated portfolio of U.S REITs and other real

estate securities

U.S Really Income seeks above-average income and capital appreciation by investing primarily in U.S REITs and

opportunistically in non-U.S real estate securities and REIT preferred securities

Global Realty frcome seeks above-average income and capital appreciation by investing in global real estate securities

and REIT preferred securities

Global Real Estate Securities seeks total return by investing in global real estate securities

International Real Estate Securities seeks total return by investing in real estate securities of companies based outside

the United States

European Real Estate Securities seeks total return by investing in real estate securities of companies based in Europe

Asia Pacific Red Estate Securities seeks total return by investing in real estate securities of companies based in Asia

and the Pacific Rim

Large Cap Value seeks total return by investing predominately in large capitalization securities of U.S based

companies with above-average dividend growth

REIT Preferred Securities seeks current income by investing in preferred securities issued by REITs and other publicly

traded real estate companies

Preferred Securties seeks current income by investing in corporate preferred and other income securities

Limited Duratioz Prefrrred Securities seeks high current income and capital appreciation by investing largely in

investment-grade securities with weighted-average modified duration target of approximately six years or less

REIT and Preferred seeks current income by investing in combination of U.S REITs other real estate securities and

corporate preferred securities

Global Listed Infrastructure seeks total return by investing in global infrastructure securities

Closed-end Opportunity seeks total return by investing in the common stock of other closed-end funds

Global Income Builder seeks total return by investing in the five proprietary strategies used in managing other

established Cohen Steers portfolios and employs an options overwriting strategy to enhance current income

Emerging Market Real Estate Securities seeks total return by investing in real estate securities of companies based in

developing countries

RealAssets seeks total return by investing in global real estate securities natural resource equities commodities and

portfolio diversifiers



Global Real Estate Long-Short makes long and short investments in global real estate securities to maximize absolute

and risk-adjusted returns with modest volatility

Global Private Real Estate Opportunity invests in private real estate funds and direct investments globally that

provide the potential for attractive risk-adjusted returns

Our Distribution Network Our distribution network encompasses the major channels in the asset management

industry including large brokerage firms registered investment advisers and institutional investors The open-end mutual

funds for which we are the investment adviser are available for purchase with and without commissions through full service

and discount broker/dealers and the significant networks serving financial advisers We provide advisory and administration

services to our open-end and closed-end mutual funds under the Cohen Steers brand name

Our institutional account relationships extend to institutions such as corporate and public pensions endowments and

Ibundations and insurance funds As of December 31 2012 approximately $17.6 billion of our institutional account assets

were subadvisory portfolios managed for several mutual funds and variable annuity funds These funds are sponsored by

other financial institutions and are distributed in the United States Canada Europe Australia and Japan

Geographic Information

The table below presents revenue by client domicile for the
years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 in

thousands

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

United States 216985 178105 146854

Non U.S

Japan 41243 41632 22219

Other 15325 17509 14665

Total 273553 237246 183738

Competition

We face substantial competition in every aspect of our business Factors affecting our business include brand

recognition business reputation investment performance quality of service and the continuity of client relationships Fee

competition also affects the business as do compensation administration commissions and/or other expenses paid to

intermediaries

Performance and price are the principal methods of competition Prospective clients and mutual fund shareholders will

typically base their decisions on our ability to generate returns that exceed market index i.e our performance and on our

fees or price Individual mutual fund holders may also base their decision on the ability to access the mutual funds we

manage through particular distribution channel Institutional account clients are often advised by consultants who may

include other factors in their decisions for these clients

We compete with large number of global and U.S investment advisers commercial banks broker/dealers insurance

companies and other financial institutions We are considered small to mid-sized investment advisory firm Many

competing firms are parts of larger financial services companies and attract business through numerous means including

retail bank offices investment banking and underwriting contacts insurance agencies and broker/dealers

More specifically in the real estate securities investment advisory business we face competition from variety of

competitors Real estate mutual fund sponsors include large nationally recognized investment advisory firms that offer

variety of mutual funds across many different asset types investment advisers that offer mutual funds whose primary

investment objective is income smaller boutique type firms that specialize solely in publicly traded real estate securities and

firms that invest directly in real estate Additionally number of financial advisers offer clients the ability to manage separate

real estate security portfolios

The growing acceptance of REITs and other high-income equity securities by both institutional and individual investors

has encouraged number of firms to begin managing income oriented equity securities and our competitors seek to expand

their market share among the same client base that we serve Financial intermediaries that provide our products to their



clients may also provide competing products Many current and potential competitors have greater brand name recognition

and more extensive client bases which could be to our disadvantage In addition our larger competitors have more resources

and may have more leverage to expand their distribution channels and capture market share through ongoing business

relationships and extensive marketing efforts Conversely relative to our larger competitors we are potentially able to grow

our business at faster rate from relatively smaller asset base In addition we believe we are able to shift resources to

respond to changing riarket conditions more quickly than many larger investment advisory firms

The open-end mutual funds for which we are the investment adviser face significant competition from other open-end

mutual funds exchange traded funds and other investment companies and hedge funds They vary both in size and

investment philosophy and their shares are offered to the public on load and no load basis Advertising sales promotions

the type and quality offered and investment performance influence competition for open-end mutual fund sales

On an annual basis investment advisory fees for the mutual funds we manage are subject to approval by the mutual

fund board of directors as well as by majority of the directors who are not interested persons as defined by the Investment

Company Act On this basis we believe that fund fees and expenses based on the level of services we provide for the mutual

funds for which we are the investment adviser are consistent with competitor funds

We also face competition in attracting and retaining qualified employees The ability to continue to compete effectively

in our business depends in part on our ability to compete effectively in the market for investment professionals and other key

employees

Regulation

Our business is subject to extensive regulation in the United States at both the federal and state level as well as by self

regulatory organizations each SRO The U.S Securities and Exchange Commission SEC is responsible for

enforcing the U.S federal securities laws and serves as supervisory body for all federally registered investment advisers as

well as for national securities exchanges and associations

CSCM is registered as an investment adviser with the SEC and is subject to the requirements and regulations of the

U.S Investment Advisers Act of 1940 the Advisers Act Such requirements relate to among other things custody

recordkeeping and reporting requirements disclosure requirements limitations on agency cross and principal transactions

between an adviser and advisory clients conflicts of interest as well as general anti-fraud prohibitions Moreover in our

capacity as an investment adviser to mutual funds we are subject to the Investment Company Act and its rules and

regulations The Investment Company Act regulates the relationship between mutual fund and its investment adviser and

prohibits or severely restricts principal transactions and joint transactions between mutual fund and its investment adviser

and other affiliates The SEC is authorized to institute proceedings and impose sanctions for violations of the Advisers Act

and the Investment Company Act ranging from fines and censure to termination of an investment advisers registration

Investment advisers also are subject to certain state securities laws and regulations Non-compliance with certain provisions

of the Advisers Act the Investment Company Act or other U.S federal and state securities laws and regulations could result

in investigations sanctions and reputational damage

Our trading and investment activities for client accounts are regulated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended the Exchange Act as well as the rules of various U.S and non-U.S securities exchanges and SROs including

laws governing trading on inside information market manipulation and broad number of technical trading requirements

e.g volume limitations reporting obligations and market regulation policies in the United States and globally In addition

we manage or subadvise variety of investment funds listed on U.S and non-U.S exchanges which are subject to regulation

by the SEC or other securities regulators depending on their country of domicile and the rules of such exchanges Violation of

these laws and regulations could result in restrictions on our activities and in damage to our reputation We manage or

subadvise variety of private pools of capital including hedge funds Legislators regulators tax authorities and others

worldwide continue tc explore on their own and in
response to demands from the investment community increased

regulation related to pivate pools of capital including changes with respect to investor eligibility certain limitations on

trading activities marketing activities the
scope of anti-fraud protections and variety of other matters We may be adversely

affected by new legislation or rule-making or changes in the interpretation or enforcement of existing rules and regulations

imposed by various regulators

The Company manages variety of private pools of capital including long-short funds and private equity fund of

funds Congress regulators tax authorities and others continue to explore on their own and in
response to demands from the

investment community and the public increased regulation related to private pools of capital including changes with respect



to investor eligibility certain limitations on trading activities record-keeping and reporting the scope of anti-fraud

protections safekeeping of client assets and variety of other matters The Company may be materially and adversely

affected by new legislation rule-makng or changes in the interpretation or enforcement of existing rules and regulations

imposed by various regulators

CSCM is registered as commodity pooi operator CPOwith the Commodity Futures Trading Commission

CFTC and is member of the National Futures Association NFA The CFTC and NFA each administer comparable

regulatory system covering futures contracts and various other financial instruments including swaps as result of the Dodd-

Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act the DFA in which certain of the Companys clients may invest

Our subsidiary Cohen Steers Securities LLC Securities is broker/dealer The regulation of broker/dealers has

to large extent been delegated by the federal securities laws to SROs which adopt rules that govern the industry The

Financial Industry Regulatory Authority FINRA is the designated SRO for Securities and conducts periodic examinations

of its operations Broker/dealers are subject to regulations which cover all aspects of the securities business including sales

practices market making and trading among broker/dealers use and safekeeping of clients funds and securities capital

structure recordkeeping and the conduct of directors officers and employees Our registered broker/dealer subsidiary is

subject to certain net capital requirements under the Exchange Act The net capital requirements which specify minimum net

capital levels for registered broker/dealers are designed to measure the financial soundness and liquidity of broker/dealers In

addition Securities is subect to regulation under the laws of the states and territories in which it is registered to conduct

securities or investment advisory business

We are subject to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 as amended ERISA and to regulations

promulgated thereunder by the Department of Labor insofar as we act as fiduciary under ERISA with respect to benefit

plan clients ERISA and applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code impose certain duties on persons
who are

fiduciaries under ERISA prohibit certain transactions involving ERISA plan clients and impose excise taxes for violations of

these prohibitions mandate certain required periodic reporting and disclosures and require us to carry bonds ensuring against

losses caused by fraud or dishonesty ERISA also imposes additional compliance reporting and operational requirements on

us that otherwise are not applicable to non-benefit plan clients

Our subsidiaries are subject to the USA PATRIOT Act of 2001 the PATRIOT Act which contains the International

Money Laundering Abatement and Anti-Terrorist Financing Act of 2001 The PATRIOT Act contains anti-money laundering

measures affecting insured depository institutions broker/dealers and certain financial institutions The PATRIOT Act

requires U.S financial institutions to adopt policies and procedures to combat money laundering and grants the Secretary of

the Treasury broad authority to establish regulations and to impose requirements and restrictions on financial institutions

operations We have established policies and procedures designed to ensure compliance with the PATRIOT Act and the

related regulations

Our subsidiaries Cohen Steers Asia Limited Cohen Steers UK Limited and Cohen Steers Europe S.A are

subject to the laws of Hong Kong the United Kingdom and Belgium respectively and are regulated by the Hong Kong

Securities and Futures Commission the United Kingdom Financial Services Authority and the Belgium Financial Services

and Markets Authority respectively They each have developed comprehensive compliance systems in order to satisfy

applicable regulatory requirements Cohen Steers Europe S.A and CSCM are also subject to regulations by the

Luxembourg Commission de Surveillance de Secteaur Financier In addition Cohen Steers UK Limited and Cohen

Steers Europe S.A must comply with certain pan-European regulations including the Markets in Financial Instruments

Directive which regulates the provision of investment services throughout the European Economic Area and the Capital

Requirements Directive which delineates regulatory capital requirements

The Companys European subsidiaries must comply with the pan-European regulatory regime established by the

Markets in Financial Instruments Directive MiFID which became effective on November 2007 and regulates the

provision of investment services and activities throughout the European Economic Area as well as the Capital Requirements

Directive which delineates regulatory capital requirements MiFID sets out detailed requirements governing the organization

and conduct of business of investment firms and regulated markets It also includes pre- and post-trade transparency

requirements for equity markets and extensive transaction reporting requirements

The United Kingdom and Belgium have adopted the MiFID rules into national legislation and regulations recent

review of MiFID by the European Commission has led to the publication of draft amendment Directive and draft new

Markets in Financial Instruments Regulation The proposals if implemented are likely to result in changes to pre- and post

trade reporting obligations and an expansion of the types of instruments subject to these requirements They may affect the



buying and selling of derivatives by moving most derivative trading onto regulated trading venues and may control the

activities of algorithmic trading The proposals may also result in changes to conduct of business requirements including

selling practices intermediary inducements and client categorization The proposals also envisage giving the European

Commission power to ban certain products and services

The failure of our internal operations to comply with the applicable regulatory frameworks could have material

adverse effect on us

Regulatory Reform

In July 2010 the DFAwas signed into law in the United States The DFA is expansive in scope and requires the

adoption of extensive regulations and numerous regulatory decisions in order to be fully implemented The continued

adoption of these
regi lations and decisions will in large measure determine the impact of the DFA on the Company and other

financial services firms The DFA may significantly change the Companys operating environment and the financial markets

in general in unpredictable ways It is not possible to predict the ultimate effects that the DFA or subsequent implementing

regulations and decisins will have upon the Companys business financial condition and results of operations Among the

potential impacts new regulations under the DFA relating to regulation of swaps and derivatives may impact the manner by
which the Company ad its advised funds and accounts use and trade swaps and other derivatives and may significantly

increase the costs of derivatives trading Similarly the Companys management of funds and accounts that use and trade

swaps and derivatives could be adversely impacted by recently adopted changes to the CFTC regulations These rule changes

include those concern ng among other things the registration and regulation of commodity pool operators and commodity

trading advisors and the accompanying registration and regulation of such entities by the NFA the registration status of

dealer counterparties and other counterparties who are major participants in the swap markets and requirements concerning

mandatory clearing of certain swap transactions Jurisdictions outside the United States in which the Company operates are

also in the process of devising or considering more pervasive regulation of many elements of the financial services industry

which could have similar impact on the Company and the broader markets

The DFA and its regulations and other new laws or regulations or changes in enforcement of existing laws or

regulations could materially and adversely impact the scope or profitability of the Companys business activities require the

Company to change certain business practices divert managements time and attention from the Companys business

activities to compliane activities and expose the Company to additional costs including compliance and tax costs and

liabilities as well as reputational harm For example the SEC continues to review the distribution fees paid to mutual fund

distributors under Rule l2b-l under the Investment Company Act which are important to number of the mutual funds the

Company manages Aiy changes to 12b-l fees would alter the way the Companys distribution partners distribute our

products Additionally the SEC the Internal Revenue Service IRS and the CFTC each continue to review the use of

futures and derivatives by mutual funds and such reviews could result in regulations that further limit the use of futures and

derivatives by mutual funds If adopted these limitations could require the Company to change certain mutual fund business

practices or to register additional entities with the CFTC which could result in additional costs and/or restrictions In

addition the Company will begin reporting certain information about its private funds to the SEC and certain information

about number of its commodity pools to the CFTC pursuant to systemic risk reporting requirements adopted by both

agencies which have required and will continue to require investments in people and systems to assure timely and accurate

reporting Still another example of changes in the regulatory landscape was the IRS implementation of Foreign Account Tax

Compliance Act FA1CA FATCA was enacted in 2010 and is intended to address tax compliance issues associated with

U.S taxpayers with foreign accounts FATCA requires foreign financial institutions to report to the IRS information about

financial accounts held by U.S taxpayers and imposes withholding documentation and reporting requirements on foreign

financial institutions Final regulations were issued by the IRS on January 17 2013 with the earliest effective dates

beginning in January 2014 In many instances however the precise nature of what needs to be implemented will be

governed by bilateral Intergovernmental Agreements IGAs between the United States and the countries in which the

Company does business Many of these IGAs have yet to be concluded FATCA could cause the Company to incur significant

administrative and compliance costs and subject clients to U.S tax withholding

Additional legislition changes in rules promulgated by regulators and self-regulatory organizations or changes in the

interpretation or enforcement of existing laws and regulations may directly affect the method of operation and profitability of

the Company The Companys profitability also could be materially and adversely affected by modification of the rules and

regulations that impaci the business and financial communities in general including changes to the laws governing taxation

antitrust regulation and electronic commerce



Employees

As of December 31 2012 we had 240 full-time employees None of our employees are subject to any
collective

bargaining agreements We believe we have good relations with our employees

Available Information

We file annual quartrly and current reports proxy statements and all amendments to these reports and other

information with the SEC We make available free of charge on or through our website at cohenandsteers.com our Annual

Reports on Form 10-K Qarterly Reports on Form I0-Q Current Reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those

reports as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC and also

make available on our website the charters for the Audit Compensation and Nominating and Corporate Governance

Committees of the Board of Directors our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics our Code of Ethics for Chief Executive and

Senior Financial Officers and our Corporate Governance Guidelines You may also read and copy any document we file at the

SECs Public Reference Room at 100 Street N.E Washington D.C 20549 Please call l-800-SEC-0330 for further

information on the operation of the Public Reference Room Reports proxy statements and other information regarding

issuers that file electronically with the SEC including our filings are also available to the public from the SECs website at

http//vcww.s

Item IA Risk Factors

Risks Related to Our Business

We depend on Martin Cohen and Robert Steers our Co-Chairmen and Co-Chief Executive Officers and the loss

of their services could have material adverse effect on us

We depend on the efforts of Mr Cohen and Mr Steers Mr Cohen and Mr Steers head each of our investment

committees with our president Joseph Harvey and they oversee the portfolio manager and research teams responsible for

each of our portfolio strategies Although we expect Mr Cohen and Mr Steers to continue to act in their current positions the

loss of their services couk have material adverse effect on us

Our ability to operate our company effectively could be impaired if we lose fail to retain or recruit key

personnel

The market fOr qualified portfolio managers is extremely competitive It is imperative for us to add and retain the

portfolio managers and investment analysts that form the foundation of our company However we may not be successful in

our efforts to recruit and retain the required personnel In addition our investment professionals and senior marketing

personnel have direct contact with our institutional account clients which can lead to strong client relationships The loss of

these personnel could jeopardize our relationships with certain institutional account clients and result in the loss of such

accounts Further we employ compensation mechanisms involving the use of equity compensation that may not be effective

especially if the market price of our common stock declines The loss of key personnel or the inability to recruit and retain

portfolio managers or marketing personnel could have material adverse effect on our business

decline in the prices of secuirities could lead to decline in revenue and earnings

significant portion of our revenue is derived from the investment advisory and administration fees we receive from

our clients These fees are primarily based on the market value of the assets and in some cases performance fees expressed

as percentage of the returns earned on the assets underlying the agreements that govern the fee calculations Accordingly

decline in the price of the securities in which we invest on behalf of our clients generally and real estate securities in

particular could cause our revenue and earnings to decline For example the unprecedented turmoil in the global capital

markets and in the REIT industry in particular during 2008 and that extended to the first quarter of 2009 had significant

material adverse effect on the value cf the assets we managed and our earnings and revenue causing our assets under

management to decline

The securities markets are highly volatile and securities prices may increase or decrease for many reasons including

economic financial or political events

Our operating margin may also be adversely affected by our fixed costs and other expenses
and the possibility that we

would he unable to scale back other costs within time frame sufficient to match any decreases in revenue relating to

changes in our assets under management



general decline in the performance of securities in the real estate sector could have an adverse effect on the

assets we manage and our revenue

As of December 31 2012 54% of the assets we managed were concentrated in U.S real estate common stocks and

15% were concentrated in non-U.S real estate securities Real estate securities and real property investments owned by the

issuers of real estate securities are subject to varying degrees of risk The returns from investments in real estate depend on

the amount of incomc and capital appreciation generated by the related properties Income and real estate values may also be

adversely affected by such factors as applicable laws e.g Americans with Disabilities Act and tax laws interest rate levels

and the availability of financing If the properties do not generate sufficient income to meet operating expenses the income

and ability of real estate company to make payments of any interest and principal on debt securities or any dividends on

common or preferred stocks will be adversely affected In addition real property and loans on real property may be subject to

the quality of credit extended and defaults by borrowers and tenants Real estate investments are relatively illiquid and
therefore the ability of real estate companies to vary their portfolios promptly in response to changes in economic or other

conditions is limited real estate company may also have joint venture investments in certain properties and consequently

its ability to control decisions relating to such properties may be limited Declines in the performance of real estate securities

such as the decline which occurred in the fourth quarter of 2008 and that extended into the first quarter of 2009 could

reduce the assets we manage and our revenue

Our growth may be constrained by the limited size and number of issuers in the real estate securities market as

well as real estate investment trust ownership restrictions

Real estate secu-ities investment continues to play an important role in the overall prospects of our business Our ability

to continue our growti in real estate securities depends in part on growth in the size and number of issuers in the real estate

securities market parlicularly in the United States Further in order for the REITs in which our advisory portfolios invest to

continue to qualify as REIT not more than 50% in value of the REITs outstanding capital stock may be owned directly or

indirectly by five or fewer individuals To assure that five or fewer individuals do not beneficially own more than 50% in

value of the REITs outstanding capital stock the REITs formation documents generally contain restrictions on ownership of

the companys outstanding capital stock common stock and/or preferred stock which
vary

from company to company These

ownership limitations may limit the investment size of our advisory portfolios in particular REITs Due to these constraints

we have in the past and may in the future stop accepting new assets in real estate securities institutional account portfolios in

certain strategies and certain open-end mutual funds We also may be constrained in our ability to sponsor new closed-end

mutual funds that invest primarily or significantly in U.S real estate securities Such constraints may impair our ability to

increase the assets we manage and our revenue

We may have limited ability to raise additional closed-end mutual fund assets to manage

Market conditions may preclude us from increasing the assets we manage in closed-end mutual funds significant

portion of our growth in the assets we manage has resulted from public offerings of the common and preferred shares of

closed-end mutual funds The market conditions for these offerings may not be as favorable now or in the future which could

adversely impact our ability to grow the assets we manage and our revenue

Certain of the closed-end funds managed by the Company utilize leverage in the form of bank financing which in the

aggregate amount to $2.1 billion as of December 31 2012

To the extent the closed-end funds managed by the Company elect or are required by regulation or the terms of the bank

financing to reduce leverage and
repay

the bank financing the funds may need to liquidate investments thereby decreasing

the Companys assets under management

Our clients can withdraw the assets we manage on short notice making our future client and revenue base

unpredictable

Our investment advisory and administration agreements are generally terminable upon 60 or fewer days notice In

addition open-end mutual fund investors may redeem their investments in the mutual funds at any time without prior notice

Moreover each investment advisory agreement including the fees payable thereunder with mutual fund is subject to

annual approval by the mutual funds board as well as by majority of the directors who are not interested
persons as defined

by the Investment Coripany Act such approval may not be granted Institutional and individual clients and firms with which

we have strategic alliances can terminate their relationships with us reduce the aggregate amount of the assets we manage or

shift their funds to other types of accounts with different rate structures for any of number of reasons including investment

performance changes in prevailing interest rates and financial market performance In declining stock market the
pace

of

mutual fund redemptions could accelerate Poor performance relative to other asset management firms tends to result in



decreased purchases of muiual fund shares increased redemptions of mutual fund shares and the loss of institutional or

individual accounts Under certain circumstances stockholder activists may pressure closed-end mutual funds for which we

are the investment adviser tender for their shares open-end liquidate or take other actions that may adversely affect the

fees we receive from the affected closed-end mutual funds The decrease in revenue that could result from any
such event

could have material advese effect on our business

In addition as required by the Investment Company Act and the Advisers Act each of our investment advisory

agreements automatically terminates upon its assignment sale of sufficient number of shares of our voting securities

could be deemed an assigoment in certain circumstances An assignment actual or constructive may trigger these

termination provisions and may adversely affect our ability to continue managing open-end and closed-end mutual funds and

institutional accounts

Loss of significant relationship would decrease our revenue

At December 31 2012 our largest institutional account relationship covering numerous strategies and accounts in

suhadvisory and model-based assignments or products represented approximately 19% of our total revenue in 2012

Approximately 48% of the institutional account assets we managed and approximately 26% of the total assets we managed

was derived from this relationship Further approximately 41% of our assets under advisement through model-based

strategy was derived from this relationship Loss of or significant withdrawal from any of these accounts would reduce our

revenue We have from time to time lost accounts or had reduction in assets because of decisions by our clients to reallocate

their assets to different asset classes modify their investment strategies or distribution rate for portfolios we subadvise or

move their assets to our competitors In the future we could lose accounts under these or other circumstances such as

adverse market conditions or poor investment performance

investment performance could reduce the assets we manage and our revenue and income

Success in the asset management business is dependent on investment performance as well as distribution and client

service Relatively poor performance tends to result in decreased sales increased withdrawals and redemptions in the case of

the open-end mutual funds and in the loss of separately managed accounts with corresponding decreases in revenue Many

analysts of the mutual fund business believe that investment performance is the most important factor for the growth of open-

end mutual funds Failure of our investment products to perform well could therefore have material adverse effect on our

results of operations and future growth

rise in interest rates could negatively impact our business

Our asset management business could be negatively impacted by rising interest rates An increase in interest rates could

cause the price of certain REITs and other securities in our clients portfolios to decline In addition an increase in interest

rates could negatively impact net flows into open-end mutual funds and institutional accounts and our ability to offer new

closed-end mutual funds These events would negatively affect our revenue and net income

The inability to access clients ithrough intermediaries could have material adverse effect on our business

Our ability to distribute mutual funds and subadvisory services is highly dependent on access to the client base of

national and regional securities firms banks insurance companies defined contribution plan administrators and other

intermediaries which generally offer competing investment products To lesser extent our institutional account asset

management business depends on recommendations by consultants financial planners and other professional advisers as

well as our existing clients We may rtot be able to continue to gain access to these channels The inability to have this access

could have material adverse effect on our business

significant portion of the growth in the mutual fund assets we manage in recent years has been accessed through

intermediaries Loss of any
of these distribution channels and the inability to access clients through new distribution

channels could adversely affect our results of operations and business prospects

Fee pressures could reduce our revenue and profitability

There has been treiid toward lower fees in some segments of the asset management business In order for us to

maintain our fee structure in competitive environment we must be able to provide clients with investment returns and

service that will encourage them to be willing to pay
such fees In addition the SEC has adopted rules that are designed to

improve mutual fund corporate governance These rules could result in further downward pressure on investment advisory

fees in the mutual fund industry Accordingly we may not be able to maintain our current fee structure or take advantage of
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scheduled fee increases Fee reductions on existing or future new business would have an adverse impact on our revenue and

profitability

Our business sftategy may not be successful

Our business strategy involves diversifying our asset management business to include products and services outside the

U.S real estate securties area This has entailed hiring additional portfolio managers in areas in which we do not have

significant prior experience including the global real estate long-short and multimanager strategies opening offices both

within and outside the United States and hiring subadvisers to manage portions of our sponsored funds In the future it may
entail acquiring other asset management firms

We may not be ruccessful in locating and hiring or acquiring such portfolio managers or asset management firms and

any such hiring activity or acquisitions may not be successful In addition our business prospects and future growth are

subject to our ability to successfully manage multiple offices and navigate legal and regulatory systems outside the United

States Furthermore change in the current tax treatment of dividends could adversely impact our business strategy

We could suffer losses in earnings or revenue if our reputation is harmed

Our reputation is important to the success of our business We believe that the Cohen Steers brand has been and

continues to be well received both in our industry and with our clients reflecting the fact that our brand like our business is

based in part on trust and confidence If our reputation is harmed existing clients may reduce amounts held in or withdraw

entirely from funds tiat we advise or funds may terminate their management agreements with us which could reduce the

amount of assets under management and cause us to suffer corresponding loss in earnings or revenue Moreover

reputational harm may cause us to lose current employees and we may be unable to continue to attract new ones with similar

qualifications motivrtions or skills If we fail to address or appear to fail to address successfully and promptly the

underlying causes of iny reputational harm we may be unsuccessful in repairing any existing harm to our reputation and our

future business prospcts would likely be affected

Failure to comply with client contractual requirements and/or guidelines could result in damage awards against

the Company and loss of revenue due to client terminations

When clients retain the Company to manage assets or provide products or services on their behalf they specify

guidelines or contractual requirements that the Company is required to observe in the provision of its services failure to

comply with these guidelines or contractual requirements could result in damage to the Companys reputation or in its clients

seeking to recover losses withdrawing their funds or terminating their contracts any of which could cause the Companys

revenue and earnings to decline

The soundness of other financial institutions could adversely affect our business

Financial services institutions are interrelated as result of trading clearing counterparty or other relationships

Cohen Steers and the funds and accounts that it manages have exposure to many different industries and counterparties

and routinely execute transactions with counterparties in the financial services industry Many of these transactions expose

Cohen Steers or the funds and accounts that it manages to credit risk in the event of default of its counterparty or client

There is no assurance that any such losses would not materially and adversely impact our revenue and earnings

Expansion into international markets and new products and services increases our operational regulatory and

other risks

We have increased and expanded our product offerings and international business activities over the past several years

including the management of global real estate long-short and multimanager strategies As result of such expansion we face

increased operational regulatory compliance reputation and foreign exchange rate risks The failure of our compliance and

internal control systems to properly mitigate such additional risks or of our operating infrastructure to support such

international expansion could result in operational failures and regulatory fines or sanctions

Regulations restricting the use of soft dollars could result in an increase of our expenses

On behalf of our mutual fund and investment advisory clients we make decisions to buy and sell securities for each

portfolio select broker/dealers to execute trades and negotiate brokerage commission rates In connection with these

transactions we may receive soft dollar credits from broker/dealers that have the effect of defraying certain of our

expenses If the ability of asset managers to use soft dollars were reduced or eliminated our operating expenses would
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potentially have increased by approximately $6.3 million in 2012 We would expect similar increase in operating expenses

for future periods if the use of soft dollars was eliminated or significantly reduced

The asset management industry is intensely competitive

Our funds and institutional accounts compete against an ever-increasing number of investment products and services

sold to the public by investment management companies investment dealers banks insurance companies and others Many

institutions competing with us have greater resources than we do We compete with other providers of investment products on

the basis of the products offered the investment performance of such products quality of service fees charged the level and

type of financial intermediary compensation the manner in which such products are marketed and distributed our reputation

and the services provided to investors In addition our ability to market investment products is highly dependent on access to

the various distribution systems of national and regional securities dealer firms which generally offer competing internally

and externally managed investment products which could limit the distribution of our investment products There can be no

assurance that we will be able to retain access to these channels The inability to have such access could have material

adverse effect on our business To the extent that existing or potential customers including securities broker/dealers decide

to invest in or broaden distribution relationships with our competitors the sales of our products as well as our market share

revenue and net income could decline

Failure to maintain adequate infrastructure could impede our ability to support business growth

We continue to experience significant growth in our business activities both domestically and internationally We must

maintain adequate infrastructure to support this growth including technological capacity data centers backup facilities and

sufficient space for expanding staff levels The failure to maintain an infrastructure commensurate with our expansion

particularly our internatiortal expansion could impede our growth

Failure to implement effective information and cyber security policies procedures and capabilities could disrupt

operations and cause financial losses that could result in decrease in Cohen Steers earnings or stock price

We are dependent on the effectiveness of its information and cyber security policies procedures and capabilities to

protect its computer and telecommunications systems and the data that reside on or are transmitted through them An

externally caused information security incident such as hacker attack virus or worm or an internally caused issue such as

failure to control access to sensitive systems could materially interrupt business operations or cause disclosure or

modification of sensitive or confidential client or competitive information and could result in material financial loss loss of

competitive position regulatory actions breach of client contracts reputational harm or legal liability which in turn could

cause decline in our earnings or stock price

The failure of key vendor to the Company to fulfill its obligations could have material adverse effect on the

Company and its products

We depend on number of key vendors for various fund administration accounting custody and transfer agent roles

and other operational needs The failure or inability of the Company to diversify its sources for key services or the failure of

any key vendors to fulfill their obligations could lead to operational issues for the Company and in certain products which

could result in financial losses for the Company and its clients

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

We are controlled by Mr Cohen and Mr Steers whose interests may differ from those of other stockholders

Our principals Mr Cohen and Mr Steers beneficially own in the aggregate approximately 54% of our common stock

as of March 82013 As long as Mr Cohen and Mr Steers control majority of the common stock they will have the ability

to among other things

elect all of the members of our board of directors and thereby control our management and affairs

determine the outcome of matters submitted to vote of our stockholders for approval and

preclude any
unsolicited acquisition of us and consequently adversely affect the market price of the common stock or

prevent our stockholder from realizing premium on their shares

The interests of our principals could differ from those of other stockholders in instances where for example our

principals compensation is being determined or where an unsolicited acquisition of us could result in change in our

management
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Sales of substantial number of shares of our common stock may adversely affect the market price of our

common stock and the issuance of additional shares will dilute all other stockholdings

Sales of substantial number of shares of our common stock in the public market or the perception that such sales

could occur could adversely affect the market price of our common stock Our principals who directly or indirectly own in

the aggregate 23743081 shares of our common stock as of March 2013 may sell shares of our common stock subject to

the securities laws restrictions on sales by affiliates We granted our principals and two trusts benefiting their families their

affiliates and certain of their transferees the right to require us to register under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended the

Securities Act shares of our common stock and other securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for shares

of common stock held by them under certain circumstances

In September 2012 registration statement that covered resales of an aggregate of 12000000 shares owned by Messrs

Cohen and Steers and 10000000 primary shares which may be offered and sold by us was declared effective by the SEC

Although there are no current plans to issue new shares upon expiration of this registration statement in September 2015 we

currently plan to file another registration statement covering the sale or re-sale of shares of our common stock

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents and Delaware law could delay or prevent change in control

Our certificate cf incorporation may delay or prevent merger or acquisition that stockholder may consider favorable

by permitting our board of directors to issue one or more series of preferred stock In addition provisions of the Delaware

General Corporation Law restrict certain business combinations with interested stockholders These provisions may also

discourage acquisition proposals or delay or prevent change in control which could harm our stock price

Legal and Regulatory Risks

We are subject to extensive regulation in the United States and internationally

Our business is ubject to extensive regulation in the United States and around the world See the discussion under

Item Business Regulation Violation of applicable laws or regulations could result in fines temporary or permanent

prohibition of the engagement in certain activities reputational harm and related client terminations suspensions of

personnel or revocation of their licenses suspension or termination of investment adviser or broker-dealer registrations or

other sanctions which could have material adverse effect on our reputation business results of operations or financial

condition and cause our earnings or stock price to decline

We may be adversely impacted by legal and regulatory changes in the United States and internationally

As previously if entioned in July 2010 the DFA was signed into law The DFA is expansive in scope and requires the

adoption of extensive regulations and numerous regulatory decisions in order to be implemented The adoption of these

regulations and decisions will in large measure determine the impact of the DFA on the Company We are continuing to

review the impact of the legislation and related rule-making will have on our business financial condition and results of

operations

The business impact of the DFA and its regulations and other new laws or regulations including those affecting money
market funds or changes in enforcement of existing laws or regulations in the United States or internationally could

adversely impact the scope or profitability of our business activities could require us to change certain business practices and

could expose us to additional costs including compliance and tax costs

Further regulations under the DFA relating to regulation of swaps and derivatives could impact the manner by which

Company-advised furds and accounts use and trade swaps and other derivatives and could significantly increase the costs of

derivatives trading coiducted by the Company on behalf of its clients We will also need to build new compliance

mechanisms to monitor compliance with SEC and CFTC rules concerning among other things the registration and

regulation of commocity pool operators and the accompanying registration and regulation of such entities by the NFA the

registration status of counterparties and other counterparties who are major swap participants in the swap markets and

requirements concern ng mandatory clearing of certain swap transactions The Company on behalf of its clients is also

preparing for mandatcd central clearing of swaps and mandated trading venue requirements

In addition the Company will begin reporting certain information about its private funds to the SEC and certain

information about nimber of its commodity pools to the CFTC pursuant to systemic risk reporting requirements adopted

by both agencies which have required and will continue to require investments in people and systems to assure timely and

accurate reporting
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The SEC the Internal Revenue Service and the CFTC each continue to review the use of futures and derivatives by

mutual funds which could result in regulations that further limit the use of futures and derivatives by mutual funds If

adopted these limitations could require the Company to change certain mutual fund business practices or to register

additional entities with the CFTC which could result in additional costs and/or restrictions

In addition in the aftermath of the financial crisis the European Commission set out detailed plan for European

Union financial retbrm outlining number of initiatives to be reflected in new or updated directives regulations and

recommendations of which the review of MiFID was part These together with the changes contemplated by the

Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive will have direct and indirect effects on our operations in the European

Economic Area including increased compliance disclosure and other obligations which could impact our ability to expand

in these markets

The foregoing regulatory changes and other reforms globally could also lead to business disruptions could adversely

impact the value of assets in which the Company has invested on behalf of clients and/or via seed or co-investments and to

the extent the regulations strictly conirol the activities of financial services firms could make it more difficult for the

Company to conduct certain business activities or distinguish itself from competitors See Item Business Regulation

above for additional information regarding certain laws and regulations that affect the Companys business

Failure to comply with the Advisers Act and the Investment Company Act and related regulations could result in

substantial harm to our reputation and results of operations

Certain of our subsidiaries are registered with the SEC under the Advisers Act and the Companys U.S mutual funds are

registered with the SEC under the lnestment Company Act The Advisers Act imposes numerous obligations and fiduciary

duties on registered investment advisers including record-keeping operating and marketing requirements disclosure

obligations and prohibitions on fraudulent activities The Investment Company Act imposes similarobligations as well as

additional detailed operational and compliance requirements on investment advisers to registered investment companies The

failure of any of the relevant subsidiaries to comply with the Advisers Act or the Investment Company Act could cause the

SEC to institute proceedings and impose sanctions for violations of either of these acts including censure termination of an

investment advisers registration or prohibition to serve as adviser to SEC-registered funds and could lead to litigation by

investors in those funds or harm to the Companys reputation any of which could cause its earnings or stock price to decline

Failure to comply with ERISA regulations could result in penalties and cause the Companys earnings or stock

price to decline

The Company is subject to ERISA and to regulations promulgated thereunder insofar as we act as fiduciary under

ERISA with respect to benefit plan clients ERISA and applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code impose duties on

persons who are fiduciaries under ER ISA prohibit specified transactions involving ERISA plan clients and provide monetary

penalties for violations of these prohibitions The failure of any of the relevant subsidiaries to comply with these requirements

could result in significant penalties that could reduce the Companys earnings or cause its stock price to decline

Legal proceedings could adversely affect operating results financial condition and cash flows for particular

period

Many aspects of our business involve substantial risks of legal liability The Company has in the past been named as

defendant in litigation arising in connection with our business activities From time to time we receive subpoenas or other

requests for information from various U.S and non-U.S governmental and regulatory authorities in connection with certain

industry-wide company-specific or other investigations or proceedings Additionally certain of the investment funds that the

Company manages are subject to lawsuits any of which could potentially harm the investment returns of the applicable fund

or result in the Company being liable to the funds for any resulting damages

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

The Company has no unresolved SEC comments

Item Properties

Our principal executive offices are located in leased office space at 2S0 Park Avenue New York New York In addition

we have leased office space in London Brussels Hong Kong Tokyo and Seattle

14



Item Legal Proceedings

From time to tirre we are involved in legal matters relating to claims arising in the ordinary course of business There

are currently no such matters pending that we believe could have material effect on our business or financial condition

From time to time the Company receives subpoenas or other requests for information from various U.S federal state

governmental and domestic and international regulatory authorities in connection with certain industry-wide or other

investigations or proceedings It is the Companys policy to cooperate fully with such inquiries

Item Mine Safety Iisclosures

Not applicable

PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity

Securities

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange NYSE and is traded under the symbol CNS As of

March 2013 there were 29 holders of record of our common stock Common stockholders include institutional and

omnibus accounts that hold common stock for numerous underlying investors The closing sale price of our common stock on

March 2013 was $34.66 per share

The declaration and payment of dividends to holders of our common stock by us if any are subject to the discretion of

our board of directors Our board of directors will take into account such matters as general economic and business

conditions our strategc plans our financial results and condition contractual legal and regulatory restrictions on the

payment of dividends by us and our subsidiaries and such other factors as our board of directors may consider to be relevant

On March 13 2013 we declared quarterly cash dividend on our common stock in the amount of $0.20 per share

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the high and low reported sale prices and dividends declared

per share for our common stock as reported on the NYSE

Three Months Ended 2012 March31 June30 September30 December31

High price 35.00 35.83 38.00 31.72

Low price 29.28 29.90 29.56 26.84

Closing price 31.90 34.51 29.62 30.47

Cash dividend declared per share 0.18 0.18 0.18 1.68

Three Months Ended 201 March 31 June 30 September 30 December31

High price 30.15 33.82 40.93 29.90

Low price 24.63 27.56 28.45 23.79

Closing price 29.68 33.15 28.75 28.90

Cash dividend declared per share 0.15 0.15 1.15 0.15

The Company declared special extraordinary dividends in the amount of $1.50 and $1.00 per share respectively on

November 2012 and August 2011
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During the three months ended December 31 2012 we made the following purchases of our equity securities that are

registered pursuant to Section 12b of the Exchange Act

Total Number of Maximum Number

Shares Purchased of Shares that May
Total Number of as Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased

Shares Average Price Announced Plans Under the Plans or

Period Purchased Paid Per Share
or Programs Programs

October through October 31 2012 234 29.38

November through November 30 2012

December through December 31 2012

Total 234 29.38

Purchases made by us to satisfy income tax withholding obligations of certain employees

During the fiscal year
ended December 31 2012 we did not sell any equity securities that were not registered under the

Securities Act

Item Selected Financial Data

The selected consolidated financial data together with other information presented below should be read in conjunction

with our consolidated financial statements and the notes to those statements and Managements Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations included in this Form 10-K
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Selected Consolidated Financial and Other Data

in thousands except per share data

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Total revenue 273553

Total expenses 177121

Operating income 96432
Total non-operating income loss 7871

Income from continuing operations before

provision for income taxes 104303

Provision for income taxes 36407
Income loss from continuing operations 67896

Loss from discontinued operations net of tax

Net income loss 67896

Less Net income loss attributable to

redeemable noncontrolling interest 1779
Net income loss attributable to common

shareholders 66117

Earnings per share data-Basic

Income loss from continuing operations

attributable to common shareholders
1.51

Loss from discontinued operations net of

tax attributable to common shareholders

Net income loss attributable to common
shareholders

1.51

Earnings per share data-Diluted

Income loss from continuing operations

attributable to common shareholders
1.49

Loss from discontinued operations net of

tax attributable to common shareholders

Net income loss attributable to common
shareholders 1.49

Cash dividends declared
per share 2.22

Consolidated Statemer ts of Financial

Condition

Cash and cash equivalents

Securities owned

Equity investments

Investments available-for-sale

Total assets

Total liabilities

Total stockholders equity

Other Financial Data in Millions

Assets under management AUM by account type

Institutional accounts 24850

Open-end mutual funds 12962

Closed-end mutual finds 7985
Total AUM 45797

25380

9619

6285

41284

19625

8484

6353

34.462

12954

6285

5546

24785

6544

4280

4278

15102

Includes $10.8 million expense associated with losses recorded on investments available-for-sale

Includes $3.7 millicn of impairment charges associated primarily with previously acquired intangible assets and $1.9

million severance expense and other employee related costs

Includes $32.3 million expense resulting from the impairment of available-for-sale securities

2012 2011

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

237246

150242

87004

143

86861

32584

54277

183738 123553

130952 105990

52786 17563

12708 13409

65494

19089

46405

4154

4490

336

54277 46405 336

30 1374

54307 46397 1710

1.26 1.09

1.26 1.09

185830

132537

53293

7413

45880

20822

25058

6997

18061

18061

0.60

0.17

0.43

0.60

0.17

0.43

0.76

121857

19070

44845

286122

41180

244942

1.23 1.07

0.04

0.04

0.04

0.04

0.20

153002

17621

10842

45758

328711

40376

284869

1.23

1.60

127824

25304

7868

27133

286233

50925

230512

1.07

2.40

136191

43979

16954

277586

44221

233365

95412

97155

8106

25322

337315

67547

216580
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Includes $6.8 million gain due to recoveries on the sale of previously impaired securities

Includes $4.1 million expense associated with the offering of closed-end mutual fund

Includes $15.7 million expense associated primarily with the offering of closed-end mutual fund
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This report and other documents filed by us contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of

the Securities Act of 1933 as amended the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended the Exchange Act which reflect our current views with respect to among other things our operations and

financial performance You can identify these forward-looking statements by the use of words such as outlook believes

expects potential mayshould seeks predicts intends plans estimates anticipates or the negative

versions of these words or other comparable words Such forward-looking statements are subject to various risks and

uncertainties

Accordingly there are or will be important factors that could cause actual outcomes or results to differ materially from

those indicated in these statements We believe that these factors include but are not limited to those described in Item 1A
Risk Factors of this Annual Report on Form 10-K These factors should not be construed as exhaustive and should be read in

conjunction with the other cautionary statements that are included in this report We undertake no obligation to publicly

update or review any forward-looking statement whether as result of new information future developments or otherwise

Overview

Cohen Steers Inc CNS Delaware corporation formed in 2004 and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to

as the Company we us or our

We are leading global investment manager focused on global real estate securities global listed infrastructure real

assets large cap value stocks and preferred securities We also manage alternative investment strategies for qualified

investors such as hedged real estate securities portfolios and private real estate strategies We serve institutional and

individual investors arcund the world
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Assets Under Management

We manage three types of accounts institutional accounts open-end mutual funds and closed-end mutual funds

The following table sets forth information regarding the net flows and appreciation/depreciation
of assets under

management for the years presented in millions

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

institutional Accounts

Assets under management beginning of period 25380 19625 12954

Inflows 2113 9841 6116

Outflows 7186 3802 2327

Net outflows inflows 5073 6039 3789

Market appreciation depreciation 4543 284 2882

Total decrease increase 530 5755 6671

Assets under management end of period 24850 25380 19625

Average assets under management for period 25284 24175 15690

Open-End Mutual Funds

Assets under management beginning of period

Inflows

Outflows

Market appreciatior depreciation

Total increase

Assets under management end of period

Average assets under management for period

Closed-End Mutual Funds

Assets under management beginning of period

Inflows

Outflows

Net inflows

Market appreciation depreciation

Total increase decrease

Assets under management end oil period

Average assets under management for period

9619 8484 6285

5149 4278 2915

3669 2991 2117

1480 1287 798

Total

Assets under management beginning of period 41284 34462 24785

Inflows 8266 14272 9371

Outflows 10855 6852 4523

Net outflows inflows 2589 7420 4848

Market appreciation depreciation 7102 598 4829

Total increase 4513 6822 9677

Assets under management end of period 45797 41284 34462

Average assets under inanagemeiat for period 44178 40039 28428

Assets under management were $45.8 billion at December 31 2012 11% increase from $41.3 billion at

December 2011 and an increase of 33% from $34.5 billion at December 31 2010 The increase in assets under

Net inflows

1863 152

3343 1135

12962 9619

11798 9342

1401

2199

8484

6984

6285 6353 5546

1004 153 340

_____________
59 79

1004 94 261

696 162 546

1700 68 807

7985 6285 6353

7096 6522 5754

20



management from December 31 2011 was due to market appreciation of $7.1 billion partially offset by net outflows of $2.6

billion primarily from global/international real estate strategies associated with subadvisory relationships

significant majority of our revenue approximately 89% 94% and 92% in the
years

ended December 31 2012 2011

and 2010 respectively was derived by providing asset management services to institutional accounts and our sponsored

open-end and c1osed-ed mutual funds This revenue is earned
pursuant to the terms of the underlying advisory contract and

is based on contractual investment advisory fee generally applied to the average assets under management in the clients

portfolio

Average assets under management were $44.2 billion in the year ended December31 2012 10% increase from $40.0

billion in the year ended December 31 2011 and 55% increase from $28.4 billion in the year ended December 31 2010

Institutional accounts

Institutional account assets under management were $24.9 billion at December 31 2012 compared with $25.4 billion at

December 31 2011 and $19.6 billion at December 31 2010 The decrease in assets under management from December 31
2011 was attributable ret outflows $5.1 billion primarily from global/international real estate strategies associated with

subadvisory relationships largely offset by market appreciation of $4.5 billion The increase in assets under management

during 2011 was attributable to net inflows of $6.0 billion primarily from subadvisory relationships into U.S real estate

strategies partially offiet by market depreciation of $284 million The increase in assets under management during 2010 was
attributable to net inflows of $3.8 billion and market appreciation of $2.9 billion

Average assets urder management for institutional accounts were $25.3 billion in the year ended December 31 2012
an increase of 5% from $24.2 billion in the year ended December 31 2011 and an increase of 61% from $15.7 billion in the

year ended December 31 2010

Institutional accoints had net outflows of $5.1 billion in the year ended December 31 2012 compared with net inflows

of $6.0 billion in the ycar ended December 31 2011 and $3.8 billion in the
year

ended December 31 2010 Gross inflows

were $2.1 billion in the year ended December 31 2012 compared with $9.8 billion in the year ended December 31 2011 and

$6.1 billion in the year ended December 31 2010 Gross outflows totaled $7.2 billion in the year ended December 31 2012
compared with $3.8 billion in the year ended December 31 2011 and $2.3 billion in the year ended December 31 2010

Market appreciation was $4.5 billion in the year ended December 31 2012 compared with market depreciation of $284

million in the year ended December 31 2011 and market appreciation of $2.9 billion in the year ended December 31 2010

Open-end mutual funds

Open-end mutual fund assets under management were $13.0 billion at December 31 2012 compared with $9.6 billion

at December 31 2011 and $8.5 billion at December 31 2010 The increase in assets under management from December 31
2011 was attributable to market appreciation of $1.9 billion and net inflows of $1.5 billion primarily from U.S real estate

and preferred securities strategies The increase in assets under management during 2011 was attributable to net inflows of

$1.3 billion partially offset by market depreciation of$l52 million The increase in assets under management during 2010

was attributable to market appreciation of $1.4 billion and net inflows of $798 million

Average assets urder management for open-end mutual funds were $11.8 billion in the year ended December 31 2012
an increase of 26% from $9.3 billion in the year ended December 31 2011 and an increase of 69% from $7.0 billion in the

year ended December 31 2010

Net inflows for open-end mutual funds were $1.5 billion in the year ended December 31 2012 compared with $1.3

billion in the year ended December 31 2011 and $798 million in the year ended December 31 2010 Gross inflows were $5.1

billion in the year ended December 31 2012 compared with $4.3 billion in the year ended December 31 2011 and $2.9

billion in the year ended December 31 2010 Gross outflows totaled $3.7 billion in the year ended December 31 2012
compared with $3.0 bill ion in the year ended December 31 2011 and $2.1 billion in the year ended December 31 2010

Market appreciation was $1.9 billion in the year ended December 31 2012 compared with market depreciation of $152

million in the
year ended December 31 2011 and market appreciation of $1.4 billion in the year ended December 31 2010
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Closed-end mutual fimds

Closed-end mutual find assets under management were $8.0 billion at December 31 2012 compared with $6.3 billion

at December 2011 anc $6.4 billion at December 31 2010 The increase in assets under management from December 31

2011 was attributable to inflows of$l .0 billion from the launch of Cohen Steers Limited Duration Preferred and Income

Fund Inc LDP and market appreciation of $696 million The decrease in assets under management during 2011 was

attributable to market depreciation of $162 million partially offset by net inflows of $94 million through an increase in the

use of the funds credit facilities The increase in assets under management during 2010 was primarily attributable to market

appreciation of $546 million and net inflows of $261 million primarily due to the launch of Cohen Steers Select Preferred

and Income Fund Inc PSF during the fourth quarter of 2010

Average assets under management for closed-end mutual funds were $7.1 billion in the year ended December 31 2012

an increase of 9% from $6.5 billion in the
year

ended December31 2011 and an increase of 23% from $5.8 billion in the

year ended December 2010

Closed-end mutual funds had inflows of $1.0 billion from the launch of LDP in the year ended December 31 2012

compared with net inflows of $94 million through an increase in the use of the funds credit facilities in the year
ended

December 2011 and net inflows of $261 million from the launch of PSF in the year
ended December 2010

Market appreciation was $696 million in the year
ended December 31 2012 compared with market depreciation of

$162 million in the year
ended December 31 2011 and market appreciation of $546 million in the year ended December31

2010

Results of Operations

III tIulak1c
Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Results of operations

Total revenue 273553 237246 183738

Total expenses
177121 150242 130952

Total non-operating income loss 7871 143 12708

Income before provision for income taxes 104303 86861 65494

2012 Compared With 2011

Revenue

Revenue increased 15% to $273.6 million in the year ended December 31 2012 from $237.2 million in the year ended

December 2011 This increase was primarily attributable to higher investment advisory and administration fees resulting

from higher average assets under management which were due to market appreciation of $7.1 billion partially offset by net

outflows of $2.6 billion primarily from global/international real estate strategies associated with subadvisory relationships

and higher portfolio consulting and other revenue attributable to higher average assets under advisement from model-based

strategies Average assets under management in the year ended December 31 2012 were $44.2 billion compared with $40.0

billion in the year ended December 31 2011 Investment advisory and administration fees increased 10% to $244.5 million in

the year ended December 31 2012 compared with $221.9 million in the year
ended December 31 2011

In the year ended December 2012 total investment advisory and administration revenue from institutional accounts

decreased 1% to $88.6 million from $89.6 million in the year
ended December 31 2011 The decrease in institutional account

revenue was attributable to lower effective fee rate partially offset by higher average assets under management Average

assets under management for institutional accounts in the year
ended December 31 2012 were $25.3 billion compared with

$24.2 billion in the year ended December31 2011

In the year ended December 31 2012 total investment advisory and administration revenue from open-end mutual

funds increased 23% to $96.3 million from $78.6 million in the year ended December 31 2011 The increase in open-end

mutual fund revenue was attributable to higher average assets under management resulting from market appreciation of SI .9

billion and net inflows of$l .5 billion in 2012 Average assets under management for open-end mutual funds in the year

ended December 31 2012 were $11 .8 billion compared with $9.3 billion in the year
ended December 31 2011
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In the year ended December 31 2012 total investment advisory and administration revenue from closed-end mutual

funds increased 11% to $59.7 million from $53.8 million in the year ended December 31 2011 The increase in closed-end

mutual fund revenue was attributable to higher average assets under management in 2012 resulting from the launch of LDP

Average assets under management for closed-end mutual funds in the year ended December 31 2012 were $7.1 billion

compared with $6.5 billion in the year ended December31 2011

Distribution and service fee revenue increased 7% to $11 .3 million in the year ended December 31 2012 from $9.7

million in the
year enced December 31 2011 This increase in distribution and service fee revenue was primarily due to

higher levels of average assets under management in 2012

Portfolio consulting and other revenue increased 213% to $17.7 million in the year ended December 31 2012 from $5.6

million in the year enced December 31 2011 The increase was due to higher portfolio consulting fees resulting from higher

assets under advisement primarily attributable to model-based strategies in the year ended December 31 2012

Expenses

Total operating expenses increased 18% to $177.1 million in the year ended December 31 2012 from $150.2 million in

the year ended December 31 2011 primarily due to increases in employee compensation and benefits of $4.1 million

distribution and service fees of$17.4 million and general and administrative expenses of $4.2 million

Employee compensation and benefits increased 5% to $88.5 million in the year ended December 31 2012 from $84.4

million in the year ended December 31 2011 This increase was primarily due to higher incentive bonus and production

compensation net of ceferrals of approximately $2.8 million and higher salary expenses of approximately $691000

Distribution and service fee expenses increased 73% to $41.3 million in the year ended December 31 2012 from $23.9

million in the
year ended December 31 2011 The 2012 results included approximately $14.4 million of distribution costs

associated with the launch of LDP After adjusting for these costs distribution and service fee
expenses would have been

$26.9 million in the year ended December 31 2012 The increase was primarily due to higher average assets under

management in certain of our open-end no-load mutual funds

General and administrative expenses increased 12% to $39.4 million in the year ended December 31 2012 from $35.2

million in the year ended December 31 2011 The increase was primarily due to higher professional fees of approximately

$1.5 million higher rent of approximately $1.4 million resulting from the extension of the lease for our corporate

headquarters in New \ork City higher marketing and printing costs of approximately $677000 and higher information

technology costs ofapDroximately $536000 resulting from upgrades made to our infrastructure including application

development

Non-operating Income

Non-operating irLcome was $7.9 million in the year ended December 31 2012 compared with non-operating loss of

$143000 in the year ended December 31 2011 The increase was primarily attributable to income from our seed investments

Income Taxes

We recorded an income tax expense of $36.4 million in the year ended December 31 2012 compared with $32.6

million in the year ended December 31 2011 The provision for income taxes in the year ended December 31 2012 included

U.S federal state local and foreign taxes at an approximate effective tax rate of 35.5% which included discrete items the

most significant ofwhch was attributable to the offering costs for LDP Excluding the discrete items the effective tax rate for

the year ended December 31 2012 was approximately 36% The effective tax rate for the year ended December 31 2011 was

approximately 38%

2011 Compared With 2010

Revenue

Revenue increased 29% to $237.2 million in the year ended December 31 2011 from $183.7 million in the year ended

December 31 2010 This increase was primarily attributable to higher investment advisory and administration fees resulting

from higher average assets under management which were due to net inflows partially offset by market depreciation

Average assets under management in the year ended December 31 2011 were $40.0 billion compared with $28.4 billion in

the year ended December 31 2010 Investment advisory and administration fees increased 31% to $221.9 million in the year

ended December 31 2011 compared with $169.8 million in the year ended December 31 2010
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In the year ended December 31 2011 total investment advisory and administration revenue from institutional accounts

increased 43% to $89.6 million from $62.6 million in the year ended December 31 2010 The increase in institutional

account revenue was attributable to higher average
assets under management resulting from net inflows of $6.0 billion

primarily from subadvisory relationships into U.S real estate strategies partially offset by market depreciation of $284

million in 2011 Average assets under management for institutional accounts in the year
ended December 31 2011 were

$24.2 billion compared with $15.7 billion in the year
ended December 31 2010

In the year ended December 31 2011 total investment advisory and administration revenue from open-end mutual

funds increased 28% to $78.6 million from $61.1 million in the year
ended December 31 2010 The increase in open-end

mutual fund revenue was attributable to higher average assets under management resulting from net inflows of $1.3 billion

partially offset by market depreciation of $152 million in 2011 Average assets under management for open-end mutual funds

in the
year

ended December 31 2011 were $9.3 billion compared with $7.0 billion in the year ended December 31 2010

In the year
ended December 31 2011 total investment advisory and administration revenue from closed-end mutual

funds increased 17% to $53.8 million from $46.1 million in the year
ended December 31 2010 The increase in closed-end

mutual fund revenue was attributable to higher average assets under management in 2011 Average assets under management

for closed-end mutual funds in the year ended December 31 2011 were $6.5 billion compared with $5.8 billion in the year

ended December 31 2010

Distribution and service fee revenue increased 7% to $9.7 million in the
year

ended December 31 2011 from $9.1

million in the year ended Iecember 31 2010 This increase in distribution and service fee revenue was primarily due to

higher levels of average assets under management in 2011

Portfolio consulting and other revenue increased 17% to $5.6 million in the
year

ended December 31 2011 from $4.8

million in the year ended lecember 31 2010 This increase was due to higher portfolio consulting fees resulting from higher

assets under advisement primarily attributable to model-based strategies in the year
ended December 31 2011

Expenses

Total operating expenses increased 15% to $150.2 million in the year ended December 31 2011 from $131.0 million in

the year ended December 31 2010 primarily due to increases in employee compensation and benefits of $12.7 million

general and administrative expenses of $4.0 million and distribution and service fees of $1.2 million

Employee compensation and benefits increased 18% to $84.4 million in the year ended December 31 2011 from $71.7

million in the year ended December 31 2010 This increase was primarily due to higher incentive bonus and production

compensation net of deferrals of approximately $4.8 million higher salaries of approximately $4.2 million and higher

amortization of restricted stock units of approximately $3.6 million

Distribution and service fee expenses
increased 5% to $23.9 million in the year

ended December 31 2011 from $22.6

million in the year ended December 31 2010 This increase was primarily due to higher average assets under management in

certain of our open-end no-load mutual funds

General and administrative expenses
increased 13% to $35.2 million in the year

ended December 31 2011 from $31.2

million in the
year

ended December 31 2010 This increase was primarily due to higher professional fees which included

product development costs of approximately $1.4 million higher information technology costs of approximately $1.0

million resulting from upgrades made to our infrastructure including application development and higher travel and

entertainment of approximately $672000 higher office expense of approximately $429000 and higher marketing expense
of

approximately $384000 clue to increased levels of business activities

Non-operating Loss income

Non-operating loss was $143000 in the year ended December 31 2011 compared with non-operating income of $12.7

million in the year
ended December 31 2010 The decrease was primarily attributable to losses in equity investments in our

sponsored onshore and offshore global real estate long-short funds in 2011 and gain of approximately $6.8 million due to

recoveries on the sale of previously impaired securities and gains from our seed investments during the year
ended

December 31 2010
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Income Taxes

We recorded an income tax expense of $32.6 million in the year ended December 31 2011 compared with $19.1

million in the
year ended December 31 2010 The effective tax rate of 29% for the year ended December 31 2010 included

discrete items which are items that are unusual or infrequently occurring in nature the most significant of which was

attributable to gains of approximately $6.8 million from the sale of previously impaired securities The provision for income

taxes in the years ended December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 included U.S federal state local and foreign taxes at an

approximate effective tax rate of 38% and 34% respectively excluding the discrete items mentioned above

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our investment advisory business does not require us to maintain significant capital balances Our current financial

condition is highly liquid with significant amount of our assets comprised of cash and cash equivalents securities owned
investments available-for-sale and accounts receivable Our cash flows generally result from the operating activities of our

business with investment advisory and administrative fees being the most significant contributor Cash and cash equivalents

equity investments investments available-for-sale and accounts receivable were 50% and 69% of total assets as of

December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively excluding investments classified as level in accordance with the Accounting

Standard Codification the Codification Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic 820

Included in equty investments was approximately $8.0 million and $7.9 million invested in our offshore global real

estate long-short fund which was classified as level investments at December 31 2012 and December 31 2011
respectively See Note to the consolidated financial statements relating to investments

Net cash provithd by operating activities was $20.3 million in the year ended December 31 2012 compared with $72.4

million and $54.0 million in the years ended December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 respectively We expect that cash

flows provided by operating activities will continue to serve as the principal source of working capital in our near future

Net cash provided by investing activities was $2.5 million in the
year ended December 31 2012 compared with net

cash used in investing activities of $3.0 million in the year ended December 31 2011 and net cash provided by investing

activities of $32.3 million in the year ended December 31 2010 In 2012 net cash provided by investing activities was

primarily comprised of proceeds from sales of investments available-for-sale in the amount of $25.7 million and proceeds

from the redemption of equity investments of $811000 partially offset by purchases of $20.7 million of investments

available-for-sale and purchases of $3.4 million of property and equipment In 2011 net cash used in investing activities was

primarily for purchases of $37.6 million of investments available-for-sale and purchases of $2.9 million of property and

equipment partially offset by proceeds from sales of investments available-for-sale in the amount of $28.7 million and

proceeds from the redemption of equity investments of $8.8 million In 2010 net cash provided by investing activities was

primarily comprised cf proceeds from sales of investments available-for-sale in the amount of $54.9 million partially offset

by purchases of$l9.7 million of investments available-for-sale and purchases of $2.9 million of property and equipment

Net cash used in financing activities was $55.7 million $77.6 million and $103.0 million in the years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively In 2012 net cash used in financing activities was primarily for dividends

paid to stockholders of $97.2 million which included special dividend of approximately $65.6 million paid on December

20 2012 repurchases of common stock of $8.5 million to satisfy employee withholding tax obligations on the delivery of

restricted stock units and the redemption of redeemable noncontrolling interest of $8.4 million partially offset by

contributions from redeemable noncontrolling interest of $55.1 million and excess tax benefits associated with the delivery of

restricted stock units of $2.9 million In 2011 net cash used in financing activities was primarily for dividends paid to

stockholders of $69.1 million which included special dividend of approximately $43.2 million paid on September 28 2011
repurchases of common stock of $6.6 million to satisfy employee withholding tax obligations on the delivery of restricted

stock units and the reiemption of redeemable noncontrolling interest of $3.7 million partially offset by excess tax benefits

associated with delivery of restricted stock units of $1.5 million In 2010 net cash used in financing activities was primarily

for dividends paid to tockho1ders of $102.4 million which included special dividend of approximately $85.3 million paid

on September 27 2010 and repurchases of common stock of $3.4 million to satisfy employee withholding tax obligations on

the delivery of restricted stock units partially offset by contributions from redeemable noncontrolling interest of $2.0 million

It is our policy tD continuously monitor and evaluate the adequacy of our capital We have consistently maintained net

capital in excess of the regulatory requirements for our broker/dealer as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange

Commission SECAt December 31 2012 we exceeded our minimum regulatory capital requirements by approximately

$1.0 million The SECs Uniform Net Capital Rule l5c3-l imposes certain requirements that may have the effect of
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prohibiting broker/dealer from distributing or withdrawing capital and requiring prior notice to the SEC for certain

withdrawals of capital Our non-U.S subsidiaries are regulated outside the U.S by the Hong Kong Securities and Future

Commission the United Kingdom Financial Securities Authority and the Belgium Financial Services and Markets Authority

At December 2012 our non-U.S subsidiaries exceeded their aggregate minimum regulatory requirements by

approximately $59.0 million We believe that our cash flows from operations will be more than adequate to meet our

anticipated capital requirements and other obligations as they become due

Included in cash and cash equivalents and investments available-for-sale were approximately $80.6 million held by our

foreign subsidiaries as of December 31 2012 including amounts held by Cohen Steers Europe S.A CSE In February

2013 we completed reorganization of CSE which resulted in funds moving to the U.S This transaction did not impact the

accounting for income taxes as of December 2012 Other than as mentioned above it is our current intention to

permanently reinvest funds held by our foreign subsidiaries outside of the U.S We believe that our cash and cash equivalents

and short term investments held in the U.S are more than sufficient to cover our working capital needs

We periodically commit to fund portion of the equity in certain of our sponsored investment products We have

committed to co-invest 5% up to $25 million of the total capital raised in Cohen Steers Global Realty Partners lIl-TE

L.P GRP-TE global private equity multimanager fund that had an initial closing on October 2011 As of December

2012 we have funded approximately $2.2 million with respect to this commitment Our investment with GRP-TE is

illiquid and will be invested for up to 12 years through the life of the fund The ultimate co-investment amount and actual

timing of the funding of this commitment is currently unknown as the co-investment amount will be based on investor

commitments to GRP-TE t1rough June 2013 and the drawdown of our commitment is contingent on the timing of

drawdowns by the underlying funds arid co-investments in which GRP-TE invests The unfunded portion of this commitment

was not recorded on our consolidated statements of financial condition as of December 31 2012

Contractual Obligations and Contingencies

We have contractual obligations to make future payments in connection with our non-cancelable operating lease

agreements for office space There were no material capital lease obligations as of December 31 2012 The following

summarizes our contractual obligations as of December 31 2012 in thousands

2018

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 and after Total

Operating leases 8088 7878 8993_ 8747 8447 55768 97921

On June 29 2012 we extended the lease for our corporate headquarters in New York City to 2024 See Note 13 for

further discussion about our commitments and contingencies

We had $4.9 million $4.7 million and $4.7 million of total gross unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31 2012

2011 and 2010 respectively The total amount of net unrecognized tax benefits that if recognized would affect the effective

tax rate was $3.0 million S2.8 million and $2.8 million net of the federal benefit on state issues as of December 31 2012

2011 and 2010 respectively We accrue interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in the provision for income

taxes As of December 31 2012 and 2011 we had accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits of

approximately $0.7 million and $0.6 million respectively See Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements for additional

disclosures related to income taxes

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not invest in any
off-balance sheet vehicles that provide liquidity capital resources market or credit risk support

or engage in any leasing activities that expose us to any liability that is not reflected in our consolidated financial statements

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of America requires us to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets

and liabilities and the disclosure of ccntingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the consolidated financial statements and

the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods We believe the estimates used in preparing the

consolidated financial statements are reasonable and prudent Actual results could differ from those estimates
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thorough understanding of our accounting policies is essential when reviewing our reported results of operations and

our financial position Management considers the following accounting policies critical to an informed review of our

consolidated financial statements For summary of these and additional accounting policies see Note to the consolidated

financial statements

Consolidation

The Company onsolidates operating entities deemed to be voting interest entities if the Company owns majority of

the voting interest Tie equity method of accounting is used for investments in non-controlled affiliates in which the

Companys ownership ranges from 20 to 50 percent or in instances in which the Company is able to exercise significant

influence but not control The Company also consolidates any variable interest entities VIEs in which the Company is the

primary beneficiary The Company provides for noncontrolling interests in consolidated subsidiaries for which the

Companys ownership is less than 100 percent

VIE is an entity in which either the equity investment at risk is not sufficient to permit the entity to finance its

own activities without additional financial support or the group of holders of the equity investment at risk lack certain

characteristics of controlling financial interest The primary beneficiary is the entity that has the obligation to absorb

majority of the expected losses or the right to receive the majority of the residual returns Investments and redemptions or

amendments to the governing documents of the respective entities could affect an entitys status as VIE or the determination

of the primary beneficiary The Company assesses whether entities in which it has an interest are VIEs upon initial

involvement and at eich reporting date The Company assesses whether it is the primary beneficiary of any VIEs identified

by evaluating its economic interests in the entity held either directly by the Company and its affiliates or indirectly through

employees See Note for further discussion about the Companys investments

Investments

We determine the appropriate classification of our investments at the time of purchase and re-evaluate such

determination at eacF statement of financial condition date

Securities owned and securities sold but not yet purchased are classified as trading securities and are measured at fair

value based on quoted market prices market prices obtained from independent pricing services engaged by management or

as determined by our fair valuation committee Unrealized gains and losses are recorded as gain loss from trading securities

reported in our consolidated statements of operations

Investments classified as equity investments are accounted for using the equity method under which we recognize our

respective share of the investees net income or loss for the period As of December 31 2012 our equity investments

consisted of interests in funds which measure their underlying investments at fair value and report net asset value on

recurring basis The carrying amounts of these investments approximate their fair values

Investments classified as available-for-sale are comprised of equity securities investment-grade preferred instruments

and investments in our sponsored open-end and closed-end mutual funds These investments are carried at fair value based on

quoted market prices or market prices obtained from independent pricing services engaged by management with unrealized

gains and losses net Df tax reported in accumulated other comprehensive income We periodically review each individual

security position that has an unrealized loss or impairment to determine if that impairment is other than temporary If we

believe an impairment of security position is other than temporary the loss will be recognized in our consolidated

statements of operations An other than temporary impairment is generally presumed to have occurred if the available-for-sale

investment has an unrealized loss continuously for 12 or more months

From time to time our consolidated funds enter into derivative contracts to hedge market and credit risks of the

underlying portfolios utilizing options total return swaps credit default swaps and futures contracts These instruments are

measured at fair vaIu with gains and losses recorded as gain loss from trading securitiesnet in our consolidated

statements of operations The fair value of these instruments are recorded in other assets or other liabilities and accrued

expenses in our consolidated statements of financial condition

Additionally fiom time to time we enter into foreign currency forward contracts to hedge our currency exposure

related to client receivables These instruments are measured at fair value with gains and losses recorded in other non

operating income in our consolidated statements of operations We record these contracts as either assets or liabilities in due

from broker or other liabilities and accrued expenses respectively in our consolidated statements of financial condition
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Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of our investment in the net assets of an acquired company over the fair

value of the underlying identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition Goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets are not

amortized but are tested at least annually for impairment by comparing the fair value to their carrying amounts Finite lived

intangible assets are amortized over their useful lives and are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate thai the carrying amount may not be recoverable We determined that the fair values of our goodwill

and indefinite lived intangible assets substantially exceeded their carrying values as result of the most recent impairment

test performed as of November 30 2012

Stock-based Compensaion

We recognize compensation expense for the grant-date fair value of awards of equity instruments granted to employees

This expense is recognized over the period during which employees are required to provide service We also estimate

forfeitures

Income Taxes

We record the currertt and deferred tax consequences of all transactions that have been recognized in the consolidated

financial statements in accordance with the provisions of the enacted tax laws Deferred tax assets are recognized for

temporary differences that will result in deductible amounts in future
years

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for

temporary differences that will result in taxable income in future
years

We record valuation allowance when necessary to

reduce deferred tax assets Lo an amount that more likely than not will be realized

Recent/v Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2013 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued new guidance requiring an entity to

provide information about the amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income by component An entity

is also required to present either on the face of the statement where net income is presented or in the notes significant

amounts reclassified out ofaccumulated other comprehensive income by the respective line items of net income This new

guidance will be effective for the first quarter of our 2013 fiscal year We do not anticipate the adoption of this new guidance

to have material impact on our consolidated financial statements

In January 2013 the FASB issued new guidance to clarify the
scope

of the offsetting disclosures associated with

derivative and hedging including bifurcated embedded derivatives repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase

agreements and securities borrowing and securities lending transactions This new guidance will be effective for the first

quarter of our 2013 fiscal year We do not anticipate the adoption of this new guidance to have material impact on our

consolidated financial statements

In October 2012 the FASB issued new guidance to make certain technical corrections to the FASB Accounting

Standards Codification Codification which identifies when the use of fair value should be linked to the definition of fair

value in Topic 820 The amendments affect various Codification topics and include source literature amendments guidance

clarification and reference corrections and relocated guidance The amendments that will not have transition guidance were

effective upon issuance and the amendments that are subject to the transition guidance will be effective for the first quarter of

our 2013 fiscal year The adoption of this new guidance did not have and is not expected to have material impact on our

consolidated financial statements

In July 2012 the FASB issued new guidance to simplify how entities test indefinite-lived intangible assets for

impairment The new guidance permits an entity to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than

not that the fair value of an indefinite.Iived intangible asset is less than its carrying amount as basis for determining whether

it is necessary to perform the second step to measure the amount of the impairment loss if any This new guidance will be

effective for the first quarter of our 2013 fiscal year We do not anticipate the adoption of this new guidance to have

material impact on our consolidated financial statements

In December 2011 ihe FASB issued new guidance to create new disclosure requirements about the nature of an entitys

rights of offset and related arrangements associated with its financial instruments and derivative instruments This new

guidance will be effective for the first quarter of our 2013 fiscal year We do not anticipate the adoption of this new guidance

to have material impact on our consolidated financial statements
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In September 2C 11 the FASB issued new guidance to simplify how entities test goodwill for impairment The new

guidance permits an entity to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value

of reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the second

step to measure the ar-iount of the impairment loss if any This new guidance was effective for the first quarter of our 2012

fiscal year The adoption of this new guidance did not have material impact on our consolidated financial statements

In June 2011 the FASB issued new guidance eliminating the option to present components of other comprehensive

income as part of the statement of changes in stockholders equity The new guidance requires changes to the components of

net income and comprehensive income in stockholders equity be presented either in single continuous statement of

comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements In the two-statement approach the first statement

should present total net income and its components followed consecutively by second statement that should present total

other comprehensive income the components of other comprehensive income and the total of comprehensive income The

new guidance should applied retrospectively In December 2011 the FASB issued guidance to defer the effective date for

amendments to the presentation of reclassifications of items out of accumulated other comprehensive income This new

guidance was effective for the first quarter of our 2012 fiscal year We elected to utilize the two-statement approach

In May 2011 the FASB issued new guidance regarding fair value measurement and disclosures The new guidance

results in common fair value measurement and disclosure requirements in U.S Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

GAAP and International Financial Reporting Requirements This new guidance changed the wording used to describe

many of the requirements for measuring fair value and for disclosing information about fair value measurements This new

guidance was effective for the first quarter of our 2012 fiscal year See Note for further discussion about the fair value of

our investments which incorporates this new guidance

Item 7A Quantitatie and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

In the normal course of our business we are exposed to the risk from changes in interest and
currency rates and

securities market and general economic fluctuations which may have an adverse impact on the value of our investments At

December 31 2012 we had approximately $97.2 million of securities owned and approximately $14.7 million of securities

sold but not yet purchased as result of consolidating the Cohen Steers Real Asset Fund and the Cohen Steers Onshore

Global Real Estate Long-Short Fund At December 31 2012 we had approximately $8.1 million of equity investments

which represented our equity interests in the offshore global real estate long-short fund and Cohen Steers Global Realty

Partners Ill-TE L.P As of December 31 2012 we had approximately $25.3 million of investments available-for-sale which

were comprised of approximately $10.6 million invested in our sponsored mutual funds $10.4 million invested in foreign

and domestic common stocks and $4.3 million invested in perpetual preferred securities

The following is summary of the effect that 10 percent increase or decrease in equity prices would have on our

investments subject to equity price fluctuation at December 31 2012

Carrying Value Carrying Value

Carrying Assuming Assuming
Value 10% Increase 10% Decrease

Securities owned 97155 106871 87440

Equity investments 8106 8917 7295

Investments available-for-sale 25322 27854 22790

significant majority of our revenueapproximately 89% 94% and 92% in the years ended December31 2012 2011

and 2010 respectivelywas derived from investment advisory agreements with our clients Under these agreements the

investment advisory and administration fee we receive is based on the market value of the assets we manage Accordingly

decline in the prices of securities generally and real estate securities in particular attributable to such market factors as

inflation interest changes and economic downturn may cause our revenue and income to decline by

causing the value of the assets we manage to decrease which would result in lower investment advisory and

administration fees or

causing our clients to withdraw funds in favor of investments that they perceive as offering greater opportunity or

lower risk which wo Id also result in lower investment advisory and administration fees

In addition market conditions may preclude us from increasing the assets we manage in closed-end mutual funds The

market conditions for these offerings may not be as favorable in the future which could adversely impact our ability to grow
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the assets we manage and realize higher fee revenue associated with such growth Further depending on market conditions

the closed-end funds we manage may increase or decrease their leverage in order to maintain the funds target leverage ratios

thereby increasing or decreasing the assets we manage

As of December 31 2012 54% and 15% of the assets we managed were concentrated in U.S real estate common

stocks and international real estate common stocks respectively An increase in interest rates or prolonged economic

downturn could have negative impact on the valuation of REITs and other securities in our clients portfolios which could

reduce our revenue In addition an increase in interest rates or prolonged economic downturn could negatively impact our

ability to increase open-end mutual fund assets and to offer new mutual funds

Item Financial Statements and Supplemental Data

The report of our independent registered public accounting firm and financial statements listed in the accompanying

index are included in Item 15 of this report See the Index to Financial Statements on page F-I

Item Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

There have been no disagreements on accounting and financial disclosure matters

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures as that term is defined in Rules 13a-l5e and 15d-15e under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act that are designed to ensure that information required to

be disclosed in our report under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods

specified in the Securities and Exchange Commissions rules and forms arid that such information is accumulated and

communicated to our management including our Co-Chief Executive Officers and our Chief Financial Officer as

appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures Any controls and procedures no matter how well

designed and operated can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives

Our management including our Co-Chief Executive Officers and our Chief Financial Officer has evaluated the

effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rule 13a-15e under the Exchange Act as of

December31 2012

Based on that evaluation and subject to the foregoing our Co-Chief Executive Officers and our Chief Financial Officer

have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31 2012 were effective to accomplish their

objectives at reasonable assurance evel

There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the three months ended

December 31 2012 that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial

reporting

Managements report on internal control over financial reporting is located on page F-2 of this Report on Form 10-K

and Deloitte Touche LLPs report on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting is located on page

F-3

Item 9B Other Information

None

30



PART III

Item 10 Directors Ececutive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information regarding directors and executive officers set forth under the captions Item Election of Directors

Information Concerning the Nominees and Directors and Item Election of Directors-Other Executive Officers of the

Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference

The information regarding compliance with Section 16a of the Exchange Act set forth under the caption Item

Election of Directors-Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance in the Proxy Statement is incorporated

herein by reference

The information regarding our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and committees of our Board of Directors under

the caption Item EZ ection of Directors-Corporate Governance at Cohen Steers and Item Election of Directors

Information about the Board and its Committees in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information contained in the sections captioned Item Election of Directors-Compensation of Executive

Officers Item Election of DirectorsInformation About The Board and its Committees and Item Election of

Directors-Report of th Compensation Committee of the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference

Item 12 Security Ovnership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information contained in the sections captioned Item Election of Directors-Ownership of Cohen Steers

Common Stock and Item Election of Directors-Equity Compensation Plan Information of the Proxy Statement is

incorporated herein by reference

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information contained in the section captioned Item Election of Directors-Certain Relationships and Related

Transactions and Item Election of Directors-Corporate Governance at Cohen Steers of the Proxy Statement is

incorporated herein by reference

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information regarding our independent registered public accounting firm fees and services in the section captioned

Item Ratification of the Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm of the Proxy Statement is

incorporated herein by reference

PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statements

Included herein at pages F- through F-34

Financial Daa Schedules

All schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable not required or the information required is

included in the financial statements or notes thereto

Exhibits

The agreements and other documents filed as exhibits to this report are not intended to provide factual information or

other disclosure other than with respect to the terms of the agreements or other documents themselves and you should not

rely on them for that purpose In particular any representations and warranties made by us in these agreements or other

documents were made solely within the specific context of the relevant agreement or document and may not describe the

actual state of affairs of the date they were made or at any other time
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Exhibit

Number Description

3.1 Form of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrantl

3.2 Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant2

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate1

4.2 Form of Registration Rights Agreement among the Registrant Martin Cohen Robert Steers The

Martin Cohen 1998 Family Trust and Robert Steers Family Trust1

10.1 Form of Tax Indemnification Agreement among Cohen Steers Capital Management Inc Martin Cohen
Robert Steers The Martin Cohen 1998 Family Trust and Robert Steers Family Trustl

10.2 Form of Employment Agreement between Cohen Steers Capital Management Inc and Martin Cohen

10.3 Form of Employment Agreement between Cohen Steers Capital Management Inc and Robert

SteersI

10.4 Cohen Steers Inc Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan3
10.5 Cohen Steers Inc Amended and Restated 2004 Annual Incentive Plan3
10.6 Cohen Steers Inc 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Planl
10.7 --- Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for the issuance of awards pursuant to the Cohen Steers Inc

2004 Siock lncentiive Planfiled herewith

10.8 Form of Voluntary Deferral Program Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for the issuance of awards pursuant

to the Cohen Steers Inc 2004 Stock Incentive PIan4
10.9 -- Form of Mandatory Deferral Program Restricted Stock unit Agreement for the issuance of awards

pursuant to the Cohen Steers Inc 2004 Stock Incentive Planfiled herewith

10.11 ---- Amendment to Employment Agreement between Cohen Steers Capital Management Inc and Martin

Cohen5
10.12 Amendment to Employment Agreement between Cohen Steers Capital Management Inc and Robert

Steers5

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant filed herewith

23.1 Consent of Deloitte Touche LLP filed herewith

24.1 Powers of Attorney included on signature page hereto

31.1 Certification of the Co-Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant

to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 filed herewith

31.2 Certification of the Co-Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant

to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 filed herewith

31.3 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 filed herewith

32.1 --- Certification of the Co-Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant

to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 furnished herewith

32.2 Certification of the Co-Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant

to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 furni shed herewith

32.3 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 furnished herewith

101 The following financial statements from the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year

ended

December 31 2012 are furnished herewith formatted in XBRL eXtensible Business Reporting

Language the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as of December 31 2012 and

December 2011 ii the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the
years

ended December 31
2012 2011 and 2010 iii the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the

years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 iv the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity

and Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 the

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December31 2012 2011 and 2010 and vi
the Noles to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Incorporated by Refrence to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-I Registration No 333-114027 as amended originally filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on March 30 2004

Incorporated by Rclircnce to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form IO-Q Commission File No 001-32236 for the quarter ended June 30 2008

Incorporated by Reference to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K Commission File No 001-32236 filed on May 15 2008

Incorporated by Reference to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q Commission File No 001-32236 for the quarter ended September 30 2004

Incorporated by Reference to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K Commission File No 001-32236 for the year ended December 31 2007

Denotes compensatory plan
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 5d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly

caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

C0FIEN STEERs INC

By Is MARTIN COHEN

Martin Cohen

Co-Chairman Co-Chief Executive

Officer and Director

March 15 2013

Each of the officers and directors of Cohen Steers Inc whose signature appears below in so signing also makes

constitutes and appoints each of Martin Cohen and Robert Steers or either of them each acting alone his true and lawful

attorneys-in-fact with ull power and substitution for him in any and all capacities to execute and cause to be filed with the

SEC any and all amendments to the Report on Form 10-K with exhibits thereto and other documents connected therewith

and to perform any acts necessary to be done in order to file such documents and hereby ratifies and confirms all that said

attorneys-in-fact or ther substitute or substitutes may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following

persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature Title Date

Is MARTIN COHEN Co-Chairman Co-Chief Executive Officer and Director

Martin Cohen Co-Principal Executive Officer March 15 2013

Is ROBERT STEERs Co-Chairman Co-Chief Executive Officer and Director

Robert Steers Co-Principal Executive Officer March 15 2013

Is PETER RHEIN

PeterL Rhein Director March 15 2013

/s RIcHARD SIMON

Richard Simon Director March 15 2013

/s EDMOND VILLANI

Edmond Villani Director March 15 2013

/s BERNARD WINOGRAD

Bernard Winogracl Director March 15 2013

Is MATrHEw SmEuR

Matthew Stadler Chief Financial Officer Principal Financial Officer March 15 2013

/s BERNARD DOUCETTE

Bernard Doucette Chief Accounting Officer Principal Accounting Officer March 15 2013

33



TABLE OF CONTENTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
F-2

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm F-3

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition F-4

Consolidated Statements of Operations
F-5

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income F-6

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity and Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest F-7

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows F-8

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-b

F-b



COHEN STEERS INC
MANAGEMENTS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of Cohen Steers Inc the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate

internal control over financial reporting The Companys internal control system is designed to provide reasonable assurance

to the Companys management and Board of Directors regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of

published financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles All internal control systems no

matter how well designed have inherent limitations Therefore even those systems determined to be effective can provide

only reasonable assurance with
respect to financial statement preparation and presentation

The Companys management assessed the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2012 In making this assessment it used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of

the Treadway Commission in Internal Control-Integrated Framework Based on our assessment we believe that as of

December 31 2012 the Companys internal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria

The Companys irternal control over financial reporting includes policies and procedures that pertain to the

maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect transactions and dispositions of assets provide

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and that receipts and expenditures are being

made only in accordance with authorizations of management and the directors of the Company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the Companys assets

that could have materal effect on the Companys financial statements

The Companys independent registered public accounting firm that audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial

Statements has issued an attestation report on the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting

Their report appears on the following page

March 15 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Cohen Steers Inc New York NY

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of Cohen Steers Inc and

subsidiaries the Company as of Iecember 31 2012 and 2011 and the related consolidated statements of operations

comprehensive income changes in stockholders equity and redeemable noncontrolling interest and cash flows for each of

the three years in the period ended December 31 2012 We also have audited the Companys internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2012 based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission The Companys management is responsible for these

financial statements for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the

effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Report on Internal

Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and an opinion on

the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in

all material respects Our audits of the financial statements included examining on test basis evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made

by management and evaLuating the overall financial statement presentation Our audit of internal control over financial

reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material

weakness exists and test ng and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed

risk Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe

that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed by or under the supervision of the

companys principal executive and principal financial officers or persons performing similar functions and effected by the

companys board of directors management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the

company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting including the possibility of collusion or

improper management override of controls material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on

timely basis Also projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future

periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

financial position of Cohen Steers Inc and subsidiaries as of December 31 2012 and 2011 and the results of their

operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2012 in conformity with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America Also in our opinion the Company maintained in

all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 based on the criteria

established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Corn mission

/s/ DELOITTE TOtJCHE LLP

New York New York

March 152013
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COHEN STEERS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

in thousands except share data

December 31 December 31
2012 2011

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 95412 127824

Securities owned $2f002 and $21952 $849 97155 25304

Equity investments 8106 7868

Investments available -for-sale 25322 27133

Accounts receivable 44397 39590

Due from broker $12358 and $10321 18233 10443

Property and equipmentnet 9103 11200

Goodwill 20122 19934

Intangible assetsnet 1790 1879

Deferred income tax assetnet 10171 9233

Other assets $103 and $209 7504 5825

Total assets 337315 286233

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Liabilities

Accrued compensation 25845 23337

Securities sold but not yet purchased $14685 and $9277 14685 9277

Income tax payable 8836 4948

Other liabilities and accrued
expenses $335 and $493 18181 13363

Total liabilitis 67547 50925

Commitments and cortingencies see Note 13

Redeemable noncontrolling interest 53188 4796

Stockholders equity

Common stock $101 par value 500000000 shares authorized 47002117 and

46155192 shares issued and outstanding at December 31 2012 and December 31
2011 respective1 470 462

Additional paid-in capital 429377 402573

Accumulated deficit 117889 83063
Accumulated other comprehensive income loss net of tax 2341 225
Less Treasury stcck at cost 3239093 and 2986913 shares at December 31 2012 and

December 31 2011 respectively 97719 89235

Total stockholders equity 216580 230512

Total liabilities and stockholders equity 337315 286233

Asset and liability amounts in parentheses represent the consolidated balances attributable to the Cohen Steers Onshore Global Real

Estate Long-Short Fund which is variable interest entity as of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 respectively

Pledged as collateral of December 31 2012 attributable to the consolidated balances of Cohen Steers Real Asset Fund

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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COHEN STEERS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

in thousands except per share data

Years Ended December 31

Revenue

Investment advisory and administration fees

Distribution and service fees

Portfolio consulting and other

Total revenue

2012 2011 2010

See notes to consolidated financial statements

F-5

244529 221879 169844

11334 9718 9078

17690 5649 4816

273553 237246 183738

41270

39431

84371 71658

23867 22631

35204 31173

5562 5056 4531

2341 1744 959

177121 150242 130952

96432 87004 52786

Expenses

Employee compensation and benefits 88517

Distribution and service fees

General and administrative

Depreciation and amortization

Amortization deferred commissions

Total expenses

Operating income
_______________

Non-operating income

Interest and dividend incomenet 2530 1068

Gain loss from trading securitiesnet 4082 39

Gain from available--for-sale securities-net 1237 376

Equity in earnings losses of affiliates

Other
_____________ _______________ _______________

Total non-operating income loss

Income before provision for income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Net income

Less Net income loss attributable to redeemable

noncontrolling interest 1779 30

Net income attributable to common shareholders 66117 54307 46397

1453

182

7564

1050 3021 3010

1028 1395 863

787 143 12708

104303 86861 65494

36407 32584 19089

67896 54277 46405

Earnings per share attributable to common shareholders

Basic 1.51 126 1.09

Diluted 1.49 123 1.07

Weighted average shares outstanding

Basic 43766 43190 42715

Diluted 44482 43975 43227



COHEN STEERS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Net income attrilutable to common shareholders 66117 54307 46397

Foreign currency translation gain loss net of tax of zero 751 1037 1000
Net unrealized gain loss from available-for-sale securities

net of tax of zero 3052 1783 416

Reclassification to statements of operations of gain from

available-for-sale securities net of tax of zero 1237 376 7564
Total compreFensive income attributable to common
shareholders 68683 51111 38249

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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COHEN STEERS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY AND

REDEEMABLE NONCONTROLLING INTEREST

in thousands

Beginning balance January 2010

Dividends

Issuance of common stock

Repurchase of common stock

Tax benefits associated with restricted stock

units-net

Issuance of restricted stock units

Amortization of restricted stock unitsnet

Forfeitures of vested restricted stock units

Net income

Other comprehensive loss net of tax

Contributions from redeemable noncontrolling

interest

Transfer of redeemable noncontrolling interest

Ending balance December 31 2010

Dividends

Issuance of common stock

Repurchase of common stock

Tax benefits associated with restricied stock

unitsnet

Issuance of restricted stock units

Amortization of restricted stock unitsnet

Forfeitures of vested restricted stock units

Net income loss

Other comprehensive loss net of tax

Distributions to redeemable noncortrolling

interest

Contributions from redeemable norcontrolling

interest

Redemptions of redeemable noncontrolling

interest

Foreign currency translation adjustment on

redeemable noncontrolling interest

Transfer of redeemable noncontrolling interest

Ending balance December 31 2011

Dividends

Issuance of common stock

Repurchase of common stock

Tax benefits associated with restricted stock

unitsnet

Issuance of restricted stock units

Amortization of restricted stock unitsnet

Forfeitures of vested restricted stock units

Net income

Other comprehensive income net of tax

Distributions to redeemable noncontrolling

interest

Contributions from redeemable noncontrolling

interest

Foreign currency translation adjustment on

redeemable noncontrolling interest

Ending balance December 31 2012

1987

3382

18594

54307

__________
5428

________

82588 233365 42640

71817

Shares of

Total Redeemable Common

Treasury Stockholders Noncontrolling Stock

Stock Equity Interest Net

79202 284869 3466 42239

106568

495 561

3386 3386 160

80

4640

15031

45
46397

8148

1954

Accumulated

Other

Retained Comprehensive

Additional Earnings Income

Common Paid-tn Accumulated Loss Net of

Stock Capital Deficit Tax

448 357886 5382 11119

106568

489

80

4640

15031

45
46397

8148

454 378081 65553 2971
__________ __________ ___________ ________

71817
531 539 760

6647 6647 232

1987

3382

18594

54307 30
3196 3196

744

744

3734

437

8123
_______

462 402573 83063 225 89235 230512 4796 43168

100943 100943

498 506 847

8484 8484 252

4223 4223

4594 4594

17490 17490

66117 66117 1779

2566 2566

8438

55132

81
_______

470 429377 117889 2341 97719 216580 53188 43763

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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COHEN STEERS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

in thousands

Years Ended December 31

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

operating activities

Stock compensation expense

Amortizaticn deferred commissions

Depreciation and amortization

Deferred rent

Gain loss from trading securities net

Equity in earnings losses of affiliates

Gain from available-for-sale securities net

Deferred income taxes

Foreign currency loss gain

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable

Due from broker

Deferred commissions

Income tax eceivable

Securities owned

Other assets

Accrued compensation

Securities sold but not yet purchased

Income tax ayable

Other liabilities and accrued expenses

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from redemption of equity investments

Purchases of investments available-for-sale

Proceeds from sales of investments available-for-sale

Purchases of property and equipment

Net cash provided by used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Excess tax benefits associated with restricted stock units

Issuance of common stock

Repurchase of common stock

67896 54277 46405

17562 18675 15100

2341 1744 959

5562 5056 4531

711 530 447
4082 39 182

1050 3021 3010
1237 376 7564

173 415 223

572 829 370

5379 5940 9127
11178 3699 1787

2981 1915 1221
777

65347 7393 12686

1039 1597 546

3039 3445 8392

6251 599 1171
4445 4388 7057

4430 839 3677

20343 72445 54040

811 8800

20733 37611 19748

25736 28703 54873

3361 2927 2854
2453 3035 32271

2905 1483 389

439 466 426

2012 2011 2010

8484 6647 3386
Dividends to stockholders 97208 69118 102400

Redemptions ofedeemable noncontrolling interest 8438 3734
Contributions from redeemable noncontrolling interest 55132 1954

Net cash used in financing activities 55654 77550 103017
Net decrease in cash md cash equivalents 32858 8140 16706
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 446 227 105
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of the year 127824 136191 153002

Cash and cash equivalents end of the
year 95412 127824 136191

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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COHEN STEERS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLILATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWSContinued

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information

For the years
ended Iecember 31 2012 2011 and 2010 the Company paid taxes net of tax refunds of approximately

$29298000 $35724000 and $10769000 respectively

Supplemental disclosures of non-cash investing and financing activities

In connection with it stock incentive plan for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 the Company

issued fully vested restricted stock units in the amount of $858000 $683000 and $473000 respectively For the years
ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 the Company issued restricted stock unit dividend equivalents in the amount of

$3735000 $2699000 and $4168000 respectively

On November 14 2011 the Company redeemed portion of its shares from the Cohen Steers Global Listed

Infrastructure Fund in the amount of approximately $3062000 that were simultaneously invested in an account treated as

available-for-sale through non-cash delivery of securities

On November 2011 the Company consolidated the assets and liabilities of the Cohen Steers Onshore Global Real

Estate Long-Short Fund rein non-cash reclassification of $18444000 from equity investments representing the

Companys proportionate share of the fund

On February 23 201 the Company consolidated the assets and liabilities of the Cohen Steers Global Listed

Infrastructure Fund resulting in non-cash reclassification of $5838000 from equity investments representing the

Companys proportionate share of the fund

During the year ended December 31 2010 the Company recorded non-cash reclassification of $30125000 to equity

investments representing the Companys proportionate ownership interests in the Cohen Steers Onshore Global Real Estate

Long-Short Fund and Cohen Steers Global Listed Infrastructure Fund partially offset by reclassification of Cohen

Steers Preferred Securities and Income Fund
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COHEN STEERS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of Presentaiion

Cohen Steers Inc CNS was organized as Delaware corporation on March 17 2004 CNS was formed to be the

holding company for Cohen Steers Capital Management Inc CSCM New York corporation and to allow for the

issuance of common stock to the public

The consolidated financial statements set forth herein include the accounts of CNS and its direct and indirect

subsidiaries CNSs wholly-owned subsidiaries are CSCM Cohen Steers Securities LLC Securities Cohen Steers

Asia Limited Cohen Steers UK Limited and Cohen Steers Europe S.A collectively the Company All material

intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation

Through CSCM registered investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 the Advisers Act the

Company serves institutional and individual investors around the world Founded in 1986 the Company is leading global

investment manager lbcused on global real estate securities global listed infrastructure real assets large cap
value stocks and

preferred securities The Company also manages alternative investment strategies for qualified investors such as hedged real

estate securities portfolios and private real estate strategies Its clients include Company-sponsored open-end and closed-end

mutual funds U.S and non-U.S pension plans endowment funds foundations and subadvised funds for other financial

institutions Through Securities its registered broker/dealer the Company provides distribution services for certain of its

funds

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Accounting EstmatesThe preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make certain

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosures of contingent assets

and liabilities at the dates of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during

the reporting periods Management believes the estimates used in preparing the consolidated financial statements are

reasonable and prudent Actual results could differ from those estimates

Reclass/IcationsCertain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation The

amounts related to these reclassifications are not material to the Companys consolidated financial statements

ConsolidationThe Company consolidates operating entities deemed to be voting interest entities if the Company

owns majority of the voting interest The equity method of accounting is used for investments in non-controlled affiliates in

which the Companys ownership ranges from 20 to 50 percent or in instances in which the Company is able to exercise

significant influence but not control The Company also consolidates any variable interest entities VIEs in which the

Company is the primary beneficiary The Company provides for noncontrolling interests in consolidated subsidiaries for

which the Companys ownership is less than 100 percent

VIE is an entity in which either the equity investment at risk is not sufficient to permit the entity to finance its

own activities without additional financial support or the group of holders of the equity investment at risk lack certain

characteristics of ccntrolling financial interest The primary beneficiary is the entity that has the obligation to absorb

majority of the expected losses or the right to receive the majority of the residual returns Investments and redemptions or

amendments to the governing documents of the respective entities could affect an entitys status as VIE or the determination

of the primary beneficiary The Company assesses whether entities in which it has an interest are VIEs upon initial

involvement and at each reporting date The Company assesses whether it is the primary beneficiary of any VIEs identified

by evaluating its economic interests in the entity held either directly by the Company and its affiliates or indirectly through

employees See Note for further discussion about the Companys investments

Cash and Cash EquivalentsCash equivalents consist of short-term highly liquid investments which are readily

convertible into cash and have original maturities of three months or less

Due from BrokerThe Company conducts business primarily through its consolidated seed investments with brokers

for certain of its investment activities The clearing and custody operations for these investment activities are performed
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COHEN STEERS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

pursuant to agreements with prime brokers The due from broker balance represents cash and cash equivalents balances at

brokers and net receivables and payables for unsettled security transactions

InvestmentsManagement of the Company determines the appropriate classification of its investments at the time of

purchase and re-evaluates determination at each statement of financial condition date

Securities owned and securities sold but not yet purchased are classified as trading securities and are measured at fair

value based on quoted market prices market prices obtained from independent pricing services engaged by management or

as determined by the Companys valuation committee Unrealized gains and losses are recorded as gain loss from trading

securitiesnet reported in the Companys consolidated statements of operations

Investments classified as equity investments are accounted for using the equity method under which we recognize our

respective share of the investees net income or loss for the period As of December 31 2012 the Companys equity

investments consisted of interests in funds which measure their underlying investments at fair value and report net asset

value on recurring basis The carrying amounts of these investments approximate their fair values

Investments classified as available-for-sale are comprised of equity securities investment-grade preferred instruments

and investments in Company-sponsored open-end and closed-end mutual funds These investments are carried at fair value

based on quoted market prices or market prices obtained from independent pricing services engaged by management with

unrealized gains and losses net of tax reported in accumulated other comprehensive income The Company periodically

reviews each individual security position that has an unrealized loss or impairment to determine if that impairment is other

than temporary If the Company believes an impairment of security position is other than temporary the loss will be

recognized in the Companys consolidated statements of operations An other than temporary impairment is generally

presumed to have occurred if the available-for-sale investment has an unrealized loss continuously for 12 or more months

From time to time the consolidated funds of the Company enter into derivative contracts to hedge market and credit

risks of the underlying portfolios utilizing options total return swaps credit default swaps and futures contracts These

instruments are measured at fair value with gains and losses recorded as gain loss from trading securitiesnet in the

Companys consolidated statements of operations The fair value of these instruments is recorded in other assets or other

liabilities and accrued expenses in the Companys consolidated statements of financial condition

Additionally from time to time the Company enters into foreign currency forward contracts to hedge its currency

exposure
related to client receivables These instruments are measured at fair value with gains and losses recorded in other

non-operating income in the Companys consolidated statements of operations The Company records these contracts as

either assets or liabilities in due from broker or other liabilities and accrued expenses respectively in its consolidated

statements of financial condition

Goodwill and Intangible Assets-Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the Companys investment in the net

assets of an acquired company over the fair value of the underlying identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition Goodwill

and indefinite lived intangible assets are not amortized but are tested at least annually for impairment by comparing the fair

value to their carrying amounts Finite lived intangible assets are amortized over their useful lives and are tested for

impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable See Note

for further discussion about the Companys goodwill and intangible assets

Redeemable Noncon trolling InterestRedeemable noncontrolling interest represents third-party interests in the

Companys consolidated entities This interest is redeemable at the option of the investors and therefore is not treated as

permanent equity Redeemable noncontrolling interest is remeasured at redemption value which approximates their fair value

at each reporting period

investment Advisory and Administration FeesThe Company earns revenue by providing asset management services

to institutional accounts and to Company-sponsored open-end and closed-end mutual funds This revenue is earned pursuant

to the terms of the underlying advisory contract and is based on contractual investment advisory fee applied to the assets in

the clients portfolio net of applicable waivers The Company also earns revenue from administration fees paid by certain
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COHEN STEERS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Company-sponsored open-end and closed-end mutual funds based on the average assets under management of such funds

This revenue is recognized as such fees are earned

Distribution and Service FeesDistribution and service fee revenue is earned as the services are performed based on

contractually-predetermined percentages of the
average assets under management of the Company-sponsored open-end load

mutual funds Distribution and service fee revenue is recorded
gross

of any third-party distribution and service fee expense

arrangements The
expenses

associated with these third-party distribution and service fee arrangements are recorded as

incurred During the third quarter of 2012 and the fourth quarter of 2010 the Company made payments of $14.4 million and

$3.2 million respectively associated with additional compensation agreements entered into in connection with the offering of

two closed-end mutual funds These payments were reflected as expenses
in distribution and service fees on the

accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the
years

ended December 31 2012 and December 31 2010

Porfolio Consulting and OtherThe Company earns portfolio consulting and other fees by providing portfolio

consulting services in connection with model-based strategies accounts ii earning licensing fee for the use of the

Companys proprietary indices and iii providing portfolio monitoring services related to number of unit investment trusts

This revenue is earned pursuant to the terms of the underlying contract and the fee schedules for these relationships vary

based on the type of services the Company provides for each relationship This revenue is recognized as such fees are earned

Stock-based CompensationThe Company recognizes compensation expense
for the grant-date fair value of awards of

equity instruments granted to employees This expense is recognized over the period during which employees are required to

provide service The Company also estimates forfeitures

Income TaxesThe Company records the current and deferred tax consequences of all transactions that have been

recognized in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the provisions of the enacted tax laws Deferred tax

assets are recognized for temporary differences that will result in deductible amounts in future years Deferred tax liabilities

are recognized for temporary differences that will result in taxable income in future years The Company records valuation

allowance when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to an amount that more likely than not will be realized

Currency Trans Tation and TransactionsAssets and liabilities of subsidiaries having non-U.S dollar functional

currencies are translated at exchange rates at the applicable consolidated statement of financial condition date Revenue and

expenses are translated at average exchange rates during the period The gains or losses resulting from translating non-U.S

dollar functional currency into U.S dollars are included in the Companys consolidated statements of comprehensive income

Gains or losses resulting from non-U.S dollar currency transactions are included in other non-operating income in the

consolidated statemer ts of operations

Comprehensive IncomeThe Company reports all changes in comprehensive income in the consolidated statements of

comprehensive income Comprehensive income includes net income or loss attributable to common shareholders unrealized

gains and losses from available-for-sale securities net of tax foreign currency translation gains and losses and

reclassification to statements of operations of gains and losses from available-for-sale securities net of tax

Recently IssuedAccounting PronouncementsIn February 2013 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB
issued new guidance requiring an entity to provide information about the amounts reclassified out of accumulated other

comprehensive income by component An entity is also required to present either on the face of the statement where net

income is presented or in the notes significant amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income by the

respective line items of net income This new guidance will be effective for the Companys first quarter of 2013 The

Company does not anticipate the adoption of this new guidance to have material impact on the Companys consolidated

financial statements

In January 2013 the FASB issued new guidance to clarify the scope of the offsetting disclosures associated with

derivative and hedging including bifurcated embedded derivatives repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase

agreements and securities borrowing and securities lending transactions This new guidance will be effective for the

Companys first quartr of 2013 The Company does not anticipate the adoption of this new guidance to have material

impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements
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COHEN STEERS INC AND SUIBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

In October 2012 the FASB issued new guidance to make certain technical corrections to the FASB Accounting

Standards Codification Codification which identifies when the use of fair value should be linked to the definition of fair

value in Codification Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic 820 The amendments affect various

Codification topics and include source literature amendments guidance clarification and reference corrections and relocated

guidance The amendments that will not have transition guidance were effective upon issuance and the amendments that are

subject to the transition guidance will be effective for the Companys first quarter of 2013 The adoption of this new guidance

did not have and is not expected to have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

In July 2012 the FASB issued new guidance to simplify how entities test indefinite-lived intangible assets for

impairment The new guidance permits an entity to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than

not that the fair value of an indefinite-lived intangible asset is less than its carrying amount as basis for determining whether

it is necessary to perform the second step to measure the amount of the impairment loss if any This new guidance will be

effective for the Companys first quarter of 2013 The Company does not anticipate the adoption of this new guidance to have

material impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

In December 2011 the FASB issued new guidance to create new disclosure requirements about the nature of an entitys

rights of offset and related arrangements associated with its financial instruments and derivative instruments This new

guidance will be effective for the Companys first quarter of 2013 The Company does not anticipate the adoption of this new

guidance to have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

In September 2011 the FASB issued new guidance to simplify how entities test goodwill for impairment The new

guidance permits an entity to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value

of reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the second

step to measure the amount of the impairment loss if any This new guidance was effective for the Companys first quarter of

2012 The adoption of this new guidance did not have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

In June 2011 the FASB issued new guidance eliminating the option to present components of other comprehensive

income as part of the statement of changes in stockholders equity The new guidance requires changes to the components of

net income and comprehensive income in stockholders equity be presented either in single continuous statement of

comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements In the two-statement approach the first statement

should present total net income and its components followed consecutively by second statement that should present total

other comprehensive income the components of other comprehensive income and the total of comprehensive income The

new guidance should be applied retrospectively This new guidance was effective for the Companys first quarter of 2012

The Company elected to uLtilize the two-statement approach

In May 2011 the FASB issued new guidance regarding fair value measurement and disclosures The new guidance

results in common fair value measurement and disclosure requirements in U.S Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

GAAP and International Financial Reporting Requirements This new guidance changed the wording used to describe

many of the requirements for measuring fair value and for disclosing infonnation about fair value measurements This new

guidance was effective for the Companys first quarter of 2012 See Note for further discussion about the fair value of the

Companys investments which incorporates this new guidance

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets recorded in the Companys statements of financial condition are related to the

acquisition of Cohen Steers Europe S.A during 2006
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COHEN STEERS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Balance at January 2011

Currency revaluation

Amortization during 2011

Balance at December 31 2011

Currency revaluation

Amortization during 2012

Balance at December 31 2012

The following is summary of the intangible assets at December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 in thousands

Remaining
Amortization Gross

Period Carrying Accumulated Intangible

In Months Amount Amortization Assets Net

1250
____________

1250

2793 1003 1790

1250
____________

1250

2793 914 1879

Amortization expenses related to the intangible assets was approximately $89000 for each of the years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively Estimated future amortization
expense

is as follows in thousands

Periods Endine Decembet.3j

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Thereafter

Total

Estimated

Amortization

Expense

89

89

89

89

89

95

540

The following summarizes the changes in the Companys goodwill and intangible assets during the years ended

December 31 2012 and 2011 in thousands

Finite Lived Intangible Indefinite Lived

Assets Intan2ible AssetsGoodwill

20334 718 1250

400

89
19934 629 1250

188

89
20122 540 1250

2012

Amortized intangible assets

Client relationships

Non-amortized intangible assets

Mutual fund management contracts

Total

2011

Amortized intangible assets

Client relationships

Non-amortized intangible assets

Mutual fund management contracts

Total

72 1543 1003 540

84 1543 914 629
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COHEN STEERS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Investments

The following is summary of the Companys investments as of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 in

thousands

December 31 2012 December 31 2011

Securities owned 97155 25304

Equity investments 8106 7868

Investments available-for-sale 25322 27133

Trading and equity investments

Cohen Steers Global Realty Partners Ill-TE L.P GRP-TE which had an initial closing in October 2011 is

structured as partnership The Company is the general partner and investment manager of GRP-TE for which it receives

management fee and is entitled to receive an incentive distribution if earned GRP-TE is VIE and the Company is not

deemed the primary beneficiary As the general partner the Company has significant influence over the financial decisions of

GRP-TE and therefore records its investment in this fund using the equity method of accounting The Companys equity

interest in GRP-TE repreents seed investment to launch the fund which was made during the first quarter of 2012 adjusted

for the Companys proportionate share of the funds earnings As of December 31 2012 the fair value of the Companys

equity interest in GRP-TE was approximately $89000 The Companys risk with respect to its investment in GRP-TE is

limited to its equity ownership and any uncollected management fees In conjunction with the launch of GRP-TE the

Company established Cohen Steers Co-Investment Partnership GRP-CIPwhich is used by the Company to fulfill its

contractual commitment 10 co-invest with GRP-TE See Note 13 for further discussion regarding the Companys co

investment commitment As of December 31 2012 the Company owned all of the voting interest in GRP-CIP Accordingly

the underlying assets and liabilities of GRP-CIP have been included in the Companys consolidated financial statements

The Cohen Steer Real Asset Fund RAP launched by the Conipany on January 31 2012 is an open-end mutual

fund for which the Company is the investment manager As of December 31 2012 the Company had controlling financial

interest in RAP Accordirgly the underlying assets and liabilities of RAP have been included in the Companys consolidated

financial statements with the third party interests classified as redeemable noncontrolling interest

Prior to the sale of the Companys remaining interest in Cohen Steers Global Listed Infrastructure Fund GLIF
during June 2012 the Company owrted the majority of the voting interest in GLIF Accordingly the underlying assets and

liabilities of GLIF had been included in the Companys consolidated financial statements with the third party interests

classified as redeemable ioncontrolling interest

During 2008 the Company launched the Cohen Steers Onshore Global Real Estate Long-Short Fund the Onshore

Fund As of December 31 2012 the Company determined that the Onshore Fund was VIE and the Company was the

primary beneficiary Therefore the underlying assets and liabilities of the Onshore Fund have been included in the

Companys consolidated financial statements with the third party interests classified as redeemable noncontrolling interest
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COHEN STEERS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

The following represents the portion of the consolidated statements of financial condition attributable to the

consolidated Onshore Fund as of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 The following assets may only be used to

settle obligations of the Onshore Fund and these liabilities are only the obligations of the Onshore Fund for which the

creditors do not have recourse to the general credit of the Company in thousands

December 31 2012 December 31 2011

Assets

Securities owned 26002 21952

Due from broker 12358 10321

Other assets 103 209

Total assets 38463 32482

Liabilities

Securities sold but not yet purchased 14685 9277

Other liabilities 335 493

Total liabilities 15020 9770

As of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 cash and cash equivalents included in due from broker which was

related to the Companys consolidated funds in the consolidated statements of financial condition of approximately

$13880000 and $9360000 respectively was held at two brokers for the purpose of covering securities sold but not yet

purchased

The Cohen Steers Offshore Global Real Estate Long-Short Fund the Offshore Fund launched by the Company in

2008 is structured as partnership The Company is the general partner and investment manager of the Offshore Fund for

which it receives management fee and is entitled to receive performance fee if earned The Company determined that the

Offshore Fund was not VIE The limited partners unaffihiated with the Company have the ability to dissolve the fund with

majority vote As result the Company does not have financial control the Offshore Fund is not consolidated into the

Companys consolidated financial statements As the general partner the Company has significant influence over the financial

decisions of the Offshore Fund and therefore as of December 31 2012 records its investment in this fund using the equity

method of accounting The Companys equity interest in the Offshore Fund represents seed investment to launch the fund

adjusted for the Companys proportionate share of the funds earnings

The following is summary of the fair value of securities owned and equity investments as of December 31 2012 and

December 31 2011 in thousands

December 31 2012 December 31 2011

Securities Equity Securities Equity

Owned Investments Owned Investments

GLIF 3352

GRP-CIP 2142

GRP-TE 89

Offshore Fund 8017 7868

Onshore Fund 26002 21952

RAP 69011

Total 97155 8106 25304 7868
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Gain loss from trading securitiesnet for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 are summarized below

in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

cpx 371

GLIF 142 145

GRP-CJP 55

Onshore Fund 2994 184 189

RAP 891

Total gain loss from trading securitiesnet 4082 39 182

Equity in earnings losses of affiliates for the years ended December 2012 2011 and 2010 are summarized below

in thousands

Years Ended December31

2012 2011 2010

cpx 617

GLIF 76 1187

GRP-TE

Offshore Fund 1050 878 403

Onshore Fund 2219 803

Total equity in earnings losses of affiliates 1050 3021 3010

Available-for-vale

The following is summary of the cost gross
unrealized gains gross unrealized losses and fair value of investments

available-for-sale as of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 in thousands

December 31 2012

Gross

Gross Unrealized

Unrealized Losses Fair

Cost Gains 12 months Value

4351 70 82 4339

9490 1147 249 10388

10100 495 10595

23941 1712 331 25322

December 31 2011

Preferred securities

Common stocks

Company-sponsored mutual funds

Total investments available-for-sale

Preferred securities

Common stocks

Company-sponsored mutual funds

Total investments available-for-sale

Gross

Gross Unrealized

Unrealized Losses Fair

Cost Gains 12 months Value

5236 98 117 5217

12247 698 401 12544

10100 728 9372

27583 796 1246 27133
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During the year eided December 31 2010 the Company recorded an impairment loss which is included in the gain

from available-for-sale securities-net in the consolidated statements of operations of approximately $363000 primarily from

auction rate preferred securities

Unrealized losses on investments available-for-sale as of December 31 2012 were generally caused by market

conditions When evaluating whether an unrealized loss on an investment available-for-sale is other than temporary the

Company reviews such factors as extent and duration of the loss deterioration in the issuers credit quality reduction or

cessation of dividend payments and overall financial strength of the issuer As of December 31 2012 the Company
determined that it had tie ability and intent to hold the remaining investments for which no other-than-temporary impairment

has occurred until
recovery

of fair value Accordingly impairment of these investments is considered temporary

Sales proceeds gross realized gains and losses from investments available-for-sale for the years ended December 31

2012 2011 and 2010 ate summarized below in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Proceeds from sales 25736 28703 54873

Gross realized gains 1918 1509 8694

Gross realized losses 681 1133 767

Fair Value

Topic 820 define fair value establishes framework for measuring fair value and enhances disclosures about

instruments carried at fur value but does not change existing guidance as to whether or not an instrument should be carried

at fair value

ASC 820 specifies hierarchy of valuation classifications based on whether the inputs to the valuation techniques used

in each valuation classification are observable or unobservable These classifications are summarized in the three broad levels

listed below

Level 1Unadjusted quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets

Level 2Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets quoted prices for identical or similar

instruments in markets that are not active and model-derived valuations in which all significant inputs and

significant value drivers are observable in active markets

Level 3Vrluations derived from valuation techniques in which significant inputs or significant value drivers are

unobservabl

Inputs used to measure fair value might fall in different levels of the fair value hierarchy in which case the Company
defaults to the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety These levels are not

necessarily an indication of the risk or liquidity associated with the investments In determining the appropriate levels the

Company performed detailed analysis of the assets and liabilities that are subject to ASC 820 Transfers among levels if

any are recorded at the beginning of the reporting period There were no transfers between level and level during the year

ended December 31 2012

F- 18



COHEN STEERS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

The following table presents fair value measurements as of December 31 2012 in thousands

Level Level Level Total

Cash equivalents 20204 20204

Due from broker 3950 3950

Securities owned

Preferred securities 1418 1505 2923

Common stocks 51354 16744 1168 69266

Fixed income securities 22824 22824

Limited partnership interests 2142 2142

Total securities owned 52772 41073 3310 97155

Equity investments 8017 89 8106

Investments available-fir-sale

Preferred securities 1254 3080 4339

Common stocks 10388 10388

Company-sponsored mutual funds 10595
____________

10595

Total investments available-for-sale 22237 3080 25322

Derivatives assets

Equity contracts 51 52 103

Foreign exchange contracts 616 616

Commodity contracts 336 336

Total derivatives assets 387 668 1055

Derivatives liabilities

Equity contracts 111 115

Commodity contracts 492 492

Credit contracts 20 20

Total derivatives liabilities 496 131 627

Securities sold but not yet purchased common stocks 14685 14685

Comprised of investments in money market funds

Comprised of investments accounted for using the equity method of accounting

Securities owned classified as level in the above table were primarily comprised of investments in United States

Treasury Bills carried at amortized cost which approximates fair value and foreign common stocks valued at foreign

exchange closing prices adjusted for subsequent significant events or market movements

Securities owned classified as level in the above table were comprised of investments in the common stock of

privately held bank holding company and limited partnership interests The investments in the common stock of privately

held bank holding company were valued by the Companys valuation committee using market approach which utilized

market multiples derived from set of comparables The limited partnership interest made during 2012 as co-investment

through GRP-CIP along with the Companys interests in GRP-TE represent the Companys collective ownership interests in

private equity vehicles that invest directly in U.S commercial real estate and were valued primarily based on the recent

transaction value of the underlying investments

Equity investments classified as level in the above table primarily represent the carrying amount of an equity

investment in the Offshore Fund which approximates its fair value based on the funds net asset value The fund makes long

and short investments in listed real estate securities to maximize absolute and risk-adjusted returns with modest volatility
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The Company has the ability to redeem its investment in the fund monthly at net asset value
per share with prior written

notice of 30 days and there are no significant restrictions to redemption

Investments available-for-sale classified as level in the above table were comprised primarily of auction rate

preferred securities which were measured at fair value using third party pricing service which utilizes combination of

market approach basec on the quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active and an income

approach in which the expected cash flows of the securities were discounted back to the measurement date The Company
reviews the fair value provided by the pricing service and confirms its understanding of the methodology utilized

The following table presents fair value measurements as of December 31 2011 in thousands

Level Level Level Total

Cash equivalents 35050 35050

Securities owned

Preferred securities 2528 2528

Common stocks 21501
____________

1275 22776

Total securities owned 24029 1275 25304

Equity investments 7868 7868

Investments available-for-sale

Preferred securities 1052 15 4150 5217

Common stocks 12544 12544

Company-sponsoed mutual funds 9372
_____________

9372

Total investments available-for-sale 22968 15 4150 27133

Derivatives assets

Equity contracts 48 98 146

Credit contracts

Total derivatives assets 48 100 148

Derivatives liabilities

Equity contracts 11 245 256

Securities sold but not yet purchased 9277 9277

Comprised of investments in money market funds

Comprised of investments accounted for using the equity method of accounting

Securities owned classified as level in the above table were comprised of investments in the common stock of

privately held bank holthng company These securities were valued by the Companys valuation committee using market

approach which incorporated the transaction data for privately negotiated transactions and market multiples derived from

set of comparables

Equity investments classified as level in the above table represent the fair value measurement of an equity investment

in the Offshore Fund which is measured at fair value based on the funds net asset value The fund makes long and short

investments in listed real estate securities to maximize absolute and risk-adjusted returns with modest volatility The

Company has the ability to redeem its investment in the fund monthly at net asset value per share with prior written notice of

30 days and there are no significant restrictions to redemption

Investments available-for-sale classified as level in the above table were comprised of auction rate preferred

securities which were measured at fair value using third party pricing service which utilizes combination of market

approach based on the quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active and an income

approach in which the expected cash flows of the securities were discounted back to the measurement date The Company
reviews the fair value provided by the pricing service and confirms its understanding of the methodology utilized
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The following table summarizes the changes in level investments measured at fair value on recurring basis for the

years ended December31 2012 and December 31 2011 in thousands

Securities Equity Investments

Owned Investments available-for-sale

Limited

Partnership
Preferred

Common Stocks Interests
GRP-TE Securities

Balance at January 12011

Purchases

Sales

Realized gains

Unrealized losses gains

Transfers to level investments 4150

Reclassification from equity investments due to

consolidation 1275

Balance at December 31 2011 1275 4150

Purchases 628 2080 89 125

Sales 1213

Realized gains
100

Unrealized losses gains 107 62

Transfers out of level investments 628 88

Balance at December 31 2012 1168 2142 89 3080

Transferred from level to level as result of decline in the level of transaction activity for identical or similar instruments during the

year ended December 31 2011

Transferred from level to level because observable market data became available for the securities during the year ended

December 31 2012

Transferred from level to level because securities started trading actively on an exchange during the year ended December 31 2012

Realized gains losses from investments classified as securities owned equity investments and investments available-

for-sale in the above tables were recorded as gain loss from trading securities equity in earnings losses of affiliates and

gain loss from available-for-sale securities respectively in the Companys consolidated statements of operations

Unrealized gains losses from investments classified as securities owned and equity investments in the above tables were

recorded as gain loss from trading securities and equity in earnings losses of affiliates respectively in the Companys

consolidated statements of operations Unrealized gains losses from investments available-for-sale in the above tables were

recorded as unrealized gain loss from available-for-sale securities in the Companys consolidated statements of

comprehensive income The Company did not recognize any gains or losses on level investments for the year
ended

December 31 2010

Valuation lechniques

In certain instances debt and equity securities are valued on the basis of prices from an orderly transaction between

market participants provided by reputable brokers/dealers or pricing services In determining the value of particular

investment pricing services may use information with respect to transactions in such investments broker quotes pricing

matrices market transactions in comparable investments and various relationships between investments As part of its

independent price verification process
the Company selectively performs detailed reviews of valuations provided by broken

dealers or pricing services

In the absence of observable market prices the Company values its investments using valuation methodologies applied

on consistent basis For some investments little market activity may exist managements determination of fair value is then

F-2



COHEN STEERS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

based on the best information available in the circumstances and may incorporate managements own assumptions and

involves significant degree ofjudgment taking into consideration combination of internal and external factors

Such investmeni.s are valued on quarterly basis taking into consideration any changes in key inputs and changes in

economic and other relevant conditions and valuation models are updated accordingly The valuation process also includes

review by the Companys valuation committee which is primarily comprised of senior members from various departments

within the Company including investment management The valuation committee provides independent oversight of the

valuation policies and procedures

The valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the following level

investments as of December 31 2012 were in thousands

Fair Value Significant Price to Book

Fair Value Methodology Unobservable Inputs Ratio Range

Common shares of privately-held Market comparable

company 1168 companies Price book ratio l.02x 1.lx

Recent transaction

Limited partnership interests 2142 Transaction value price

The significant unobservable input related to common shares of privately-held bank holding company utilized in the

fair value measurement of the level investments in the above table is the price to book ratio Significant changes in this

input may result in materially higher or lower fair value measurement The disclosure in the above table excludes auction

rate preferred securities for which fair value is based on unobservable but non-quantitative inputs Such items include

financial instruments or which the determination of fair value is based on unadjusted quotations provided by third party

pricing service

Derivatives

The following is summary of the notional and fair value of the derivative financial instruments The notional amount

represents the absolute value amount of all outstanding derivative contracts based on the fair value of each contract at

December 31 2012 ii thousands

December 31 2012

Assets Liabilities

Notional Fair Value Notional Fair Value

Total equity contracts 9608 103 4942 115

Total foreign exchange contracts 13584 616

Total commodity contracts 17817 336 10954 492

Total credit contracts 1500 20

Total derivatives 41009 1055 17396 627
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The following is summary of the notional and fair value of the derivative financial instruments The notional amount

represents the absolute value amount of all outstanding derivative contracts based on the fair value of each contract at

December 31 2011 in thousands

December 31 2011

Assets Liabilities

Notional Fair Value Notional Fair Value

Total equity contracts 5469 146 10139 256

Total credit contracts 1511

Total derivatives 6980 148 10139 256

The Company had no derivative financial instruments at December 31 2010 For the years
ended December 31 2012

and 2011 the effect of derivative transactions was not material to the Companys consolidated statements of operations As of

December 31 2012 cash included in due from broker and securities included in securities owned in the consolidated

statement of financial condition of approximately $2161000 and $849000 respectively were held as collateral for futures

total return and credit default swaps As of December 31 2011 cash included in due from broker in the consolidated

statement of financial condition of approximately $2507000 was held as collateral for total return and credit default swaps

Property and Equipment

The following is summary of property and equipment at December 31 2012 and 2011 in thousands

At December 31

2012 2011

Equipment 5539 5262

Furniture and fixtures 3465 3465

Software 10366 7310

Leasehold improvements 11346 11308

Subtotal 30716 27345

Less Accumulated depreciation and amortization 21613 16145

Property and equipment net 9103 11200

Depreciation and amortization expense related to property and equipment was $5473000 $4967000 and $4442000

for the years
ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Depreciation and amortization expense is recorded using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the

related assets which
ranges

from 3-7 years

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing net income attributable to common shareholders by the weighted

average
shares outstanding Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing net income attributable to common

shareholders by the total weighted average shares of common stock outstanding and common stock equivalents Common

stock equivalents are comprised of dilutive potential shares from restricted stock unit awards Common stock equivalents are

excluded from the computation if their effect is anti-dilutive Diluted earnings per
share are computed using the treasury

stock method

No anti-dilutive common stock equivalents were excluded from the computation for the year ended December 31

2012 Anti-dilutive common stock equivalents of approximately 2000 and 47000 shares were excluded from the

computation for the years
ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively
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The following reconciliation of the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share

computations for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 in thousands except per share data

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Net income 67896 54277 46405

Less Net income loss attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interest 1779 30

Net income attributable to common shareholders 66117 54307 46397

Basic weighted average shares outstanding 43766 43190 42715

Dilutive potential shares from restricted stock units 716 785 512

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 44482 43975 43227

Basic earnings per share attributable to common shareholders 1.51 1.26 1.09

Diluted earnings per share attributable to common shareholders 1.49 1.23 1.07

Stock-Based Compensation

2004 Stock Incentive Plan

The Amended and Restated Cohen Steers Inc 2004 Stock Incentive Plan the SIP provides for the issuance of

Restricted Stock Units RSUs stock options and other stock-based awards for period of up to ten years to eligible

employees and directors total of 14.0 million shares of common stock may be granted under the SIP At December 31

2012 RSUs with respect to approximately 11.3 million shares of common stock were issued

Restricted Stock Units

Vested Restricted Stock Unit Grants

The Company his granted awards of vested RSUs to the independent directors of the Company pursuant to the SIP The

directors are entitled to receive delivery of the underlying common stock on the third anniversary of the date of the grant

Dividends declared during the delayed delivery period are paid to the directors in cash At December 31 2012 vested RSUs

with respect to approximately 34000 shares of common stock were outstanding pursuant to these grants In connection with

the grant of these vested RSUs the Company recorded non-cash stock-based compensation expense of approximately

$326000 $300000 arid $300000 for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

The following table sets forth activity relating to the Companys granted awards of vested RSUs under the SIP for

awards to the independent directors share data in thousands

Weighted Average
Number of Shares Grant Date Fair Value

BalanceatJanuaryl2010 38 $21.32

Granted 13 22.79

Delivered 40.57

Balance at December31 2010 46 19.66

Granted 10 29.12

Delivered 11 27.63

Balance at December31 2011 45 19.90

Granted 10 31.77

Delivered 21 13.79

Balance at December 31 2012 34 27.46
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Unvested Restricted Stock Unit Grants

The Company grants awards of unvested RSUs to certain employees pursuant to the SIP The fair value at the date of

grant is expensed on straight-line basis over the applicable service periods Except in circumstances where dividend is

determined to he an extraordinary dividend in the sole discretion of the Companys Compensation Committee in which case

dividend equivalents are accrued on such RSUs in the form of additional unvested RSUs dividends are not paid to the

holders of such unvested RSUs At December 31 2012 RSUs with respect to approximately 979000 shares of common

stock were outstanding pursuant to these grants Amortization expense
related to the unearned stock-based compensation net

of forfeitures was approximately $7328000 $8224000 and $7460000 for the
years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and

2010 respectively

The following table sets forth activity relating to the Companys granted awards under the above mentioned plans share

data in thousands

Weighted Average
Number of Shares Grant Date Fair Value

Balance at January 1.2010 637 $22.64

Granted 1055 20.68

Delivered 220 23.60

Forfeited 40 21.82

Balance at December 31 2010 1432 21.07

Granted 253 28.98

Delivered 369 22.47

Forfeited 37 21.98

Balance at December 31 2011 1279 22.21

Granted 100 32.34

Delivered 346 23.57

Forfeited 54 20.75

Balance at December 31 2012 979 22.85

incentive Bonus Plans/or Employees of the Company

The Company has implemented two programs for employees under which based upon compensation levels it

automatically pays portion of their year-end bonuses in the form of unvested RSUs Mandatory Plan and ii employees

can elect to defer on pre-tax basis an additional portion of their year-end bonus in the form of vested RSUs Voluntary

Plan These RSUs are issued pursuant to the SIP Under both plans the Company matches predetermined amount of the

employee contribution in the form of invested RSUs Dividend equivalents are accrued on the deferred compensation awards

and the matches in the form of additional unvested RSUs The RSUs under the Mandatory Plan including the Company

match will vest and be delivered pro-rata over four years The dividend equivalents issued under the Mandatory Plan vest

and will be delivered four years after ihe date of grant The RSUs granted under the Voluntary Plan vest immediately at the

date of grant and will be delivered three years after the date of grant The Company match and dividend equivalents under the

Voluntary Plan vest and will be delivered three years after the date of grant The fair value at the date of grant of the RSUs

under the Mandatory Plan and the matching under both programs is expensed on straight-line basis On May 2012 the

Company discontinued the company match on amounts deferred under the Mandatory Plan All historical grants made

pursuant to the company match on amounts deferred under the Mandatory Plan will continue to vest and be delivered in

accordance with the previous schedule Further on May 2012 the Company discontinued the Voluntary Plan commencing

with performance year 2013 All historical grants made pursuant to the Voluntary Plan as well as the company match on such

grants will continue to vest and/or be delivered in accordance with the previous schedule All employees that made an

election to voluntarily defer portion of their 2012 year-end bonus were permitted to defer such optional deferred amount

and received matching contribution from the company on such optional deferred amount
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As of December 31 2012 approximately 1262000 and 52000 RSUs under the Mandatory Plan and Voluntary Plan

respectively including matching and dividend equivalents were outstanding In connection with the grant of the vested RSUs

issued under the Voluntary Plan the Company recorded non-cash stock-based compensation expense including

amortization on the matching component of approximately $577000 $602000 and $539000 for the years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively Amortization expense net of forfeitures related to the unearned stock-

based compensation of the Mandatory Plan including the matching component was approximately $10069000

$10300000 and $7L.10000 for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

The following table sets forth activity relating to the Companys incentive bonus plans including Company match and

dividend equivalents share data in thousands

Weighted Average
Number of Shares Grant Date Fair Value

Balance at January 12010 932 $27.41

Granted 162 21.07

Delivered 315 32.24

Forfeited 21.18

Balance at December 31 2010 770 24.17

Granted 740 28.59

Delivered 362 27.79

Forfeited 16 25.46

Balance at December3l2011 1132 25.88

Granted 692 33.38

Delivered 464 24.72

Forfeited 46 30.88

Balance at December 31 2012 1314 30.07

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Pursuant to the 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan ESPP the Company allows eligible employees as defined in

the ESPP to purchase common stock at 15% discount from market value with maximum of $25000 in annual aggregate

purchases by any one individual The number of shares of common stock authorized for purchase by eligible employees was

500000 For the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 approximately 16000 18000 and 21000 shares

respectively had bee purchased by eligible employees through the ESPP For the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and

2010 the Company recorded non-cash stock-based compensation expense of approximately $76000 $81000 and

$74000 respectively which represents the discount on the shares issued pursuant to this plan The ESPP will terminate upon

the earliest to occur cf the following termination of the ESPP by the board of directors issuance of all of the shares

reserved for issuance under the ESPP or the tenth anniversary of the effective date of the ESPR

10 401k and Profit-Sharing Plan

The Company sponsors profit-sharing plan the Plan covering all employees who meet certain age and service

requirements Subject to limitations the Plan permits participants to defer up to 100% of their compensation pursuant to

Section 40 1k of the Internal Revenue Code Employee contributions are matched by the Company at $0.50 per $1.00

deferred The Plan alo allows the Company to make discretionary contributions which are integrated with the taxable wage

base under the Social Security Act No discretionary contributions were made for the years ended December 31 2012 2011

and 2010

Forfeitures occur when participants terminate employment before becoming entitled to their full benefits under the

Plan Forfeited amounts are used to reduce the Companys contributions to the Plan Forfeitures for the years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 totaled approximately $72000 $52000 and $110000 respectively
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Matching contributions net of fbrfeitures to the Plan totaled approximately $1110000 $1088000 and $953000 for

the
years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

11 Related Party Transactions

The Company is an investment advisor to and has administrative agreements with affiliated open-end and closed-end

mutual funds for which certain employees are officers and/or directors The following table sets forth the amount of revenue

the Company earned from these affiliated funds for the
years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Investment advisory and administration fees 155931 132320 107206

Distribution and service fees 11334 9718 9078

167265 142038 116284

For the
years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 the Company had investment advisory agreements with

certain affiliated closed-end mutual funds pursuant to which the Company contractually waived approximately $299000

$1826000 and $3351 000 respectively of advisory fees it was otherwise entitled to receive These investment advisory

agreements contractually require the Company to waive portion of the advisory fees the Company otherwise would charge

for up to 10 years from the respective funds inception date The board of directors of these mutual funds must approve
the

renewal of the advisory agreements each year including any reduction in advisory fee waivers scheduled to take effect during

that year As of December 31 2012 there were no additional scheduled reductions in advisory fee waivers for any fund

Sales proceeds gross realized gains and dividend income from investments available-for-sale in Company-sponsored

mutual funds for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 are summarized below in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Proceeds from sales 103 3333 14250

Gross realized gains 317 1554

Dividend income 36 647

The Company has agreements with certain affiliated open-end and closed-end mutual funds to reimburse certain fund

expenses For the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 expenses of approximately $6345000 $6229000 and

$5273000 respectively were incurred by the Company pursuant to these agreements and are included in general and

administrative expenses

Included in accounts receivable at December 31 2012 and 2011 are receivables due from Company-sponsored mutual

funds of approximately $18133000 and $12947000 respectively

12 Regulatory Requirements

Securities registered broker/dealer in the U.S is subject to the SECs Uniform Net Capital Rule 15c3-l the Rule
which requires that broker/dealers maintain minimum level of net capital as defined As of December 31 2012 Securities

had net capital of approximately $1082000 which exceeded its requirements by approximately $1004000 The Rule also

provides that equity capital may not be withdrawn or cash dividends paid if the resulting net capital of broker/dealer is less

than the amount required under the Rule and requires prior notice to the SEC for certain withdrawals of capital

Securities does not carry customer accounts and is exempt from the SECs Rule 15c3-3 pursuant to provisions kl of

such rule
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The non-U.S subsidiaries of the Company are regulated outside the U.S by the Hong Kong Securities and Futures

Commission the United Kingdom Financial Securities Authority and the Belgium Financial Services and Markets Authority

collectively the Foreign Regulated Entities As of December 31 2012 the Foreign Regulated Entities had aggregate

regulatory capital of approximately $60401000 which exceeded requirements by approximately $58989000

13 Commitments arid Contingencies

The Company leases office space under noncancelable operating leases expiring at various dates through January 2024

On June 29 2012 the Company extended the lease for its corporate headquarters in New York City for an added 10 year

period through January 2024 The Company subleases some of its office space to third party under noncancelable

operating lease expiring January 30 2014 The aggregate minimum future payments under the leases and subleases are as

follows in thousands

Gross Rent Obligations Sublease Income Net Rent Obligations

8088 1101 6987

7878 75 7803

8993 8993

8747 8747

8447 8447

Years Ended December 31

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Thereafter 55768 55768

97921 1176 96745

Rent expense charged to operations including escalation charges for real estate taxes and other expenses totaled

approximately $8535000 $7109000 and $7135000 for the
years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Sublease rental income received for the years ended December 31 20122011 and 2010 was approximately $1025000

$1010000 and $987000 respectively

From time to time the Company is involved in legal matters relating to claims arising in the ordinary course of

business There are currently no such matters pending that the Company believes could have material adverse effect on its

business or financial condition

The Company periodically commits to fund portion of the equity in certain of its sponsored investment products The

Company has committed to co-invest 5% up to $25 million of the total capital raised in Cohen Steers Global Realty

Partners III GRP global private equity multimanager fund that had an initial closing on October 2011 and such co

investment will be invested in GRP for up to 12 years through the life of the fund As of December 31 2012 the Company

has funded approximately $2.2 million with respect to this commitment The ultimate co-investment amount and actual

timing of the funding of this commitment is currently unknown as the co-investment amount will be based on investor

commitments to GRP through June 2013 and the drawdown of the Companys commitment is contingent on the timing of

drawdowns by the underlying funds and co-investments in which GRP invests This unfunded commitment was not recorded

on the Companys consolidated statements of financial condition as of December 31 2012

14 Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 includes U.S federal state

local and foreign taxes The effective tax rate of approximately of 35.5% for the year ended December 31 2012 included

discrete items which are items that are unusual or infrequently occurring in nature the most significant of which was

attributable to the launch costs for Cohen Steers Limited Duration Preferred and Income Fund Inc LDP closed-end

mutual fund Excluding the discrete items the effective tax rate for the year ended December 31 2012 was approximately

36% The effective tax rate for the year ended December 31 2011 was approximately 38% The effective tax rate of

approximately 29% fDr the year ended December 31 2010 included discrete items the most significant of which was

attributable to the gain of approximately $6776000 from sales of previously impaired securities Excluding these discrete

items the effective rate for the year ended December 31 2010 was approximately 34%
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The Company does not provide for deferred taxes on the excess of the financial reporting over the tax basis in its

investments in foreign subsidiaries that are essentially permanent in duration That excess totaled approximately $69393000

as of December 2012 The determination of the additional deferred taxes that have not been provided is not practicable

because of the complexities of the hypothetical calculation

The income before provision for income taxes and provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31 2012

2011 and 2010 are as follows in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Income before provision for income taxes 104303 86861 65494

Current taxes

U.S federal 29723 24685 13044

State and local 3754 3357 1897

Non-U.S 3103 4957 3925

36580 32999 18866

Deferred taxes

U.S federal 92 320 181

State and local 12 43 26

Non-U.S 69 52 16

173 415 223

Provision for income taxes 36407 32584 19089

Deferred income taxes represent the tax effects of the temporary differences between book and tax bases and are

measured using enacted tax rates that will be in effect when such items are expected to reverse The Company records

valuation allowance when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to an amount that more likely than not will be realized

Significant components of the Companys net deferred income tax asset at December 31 2012 and 2011 consist ofthe

following in thousands

At December 31

2012 2011

Deferred income tax assets liabilities

Stock-based compensation 6376 6418

Non-deductible realized losses on sales of securities 7109 7960

Dividend equivalents on unvested restricted stock units 3618 2857

Unrealized gains on investments 1596 939
Other 177 42

Subtotal 15684 16254

Less valuation allowance 5513 7021
Deferred income tax asset net 10171 9233

At December 31 2012 the Company had approximately $4899000 of total gross unrecognized tax benefits Of this

total approximately $2957000 net of the federal benefit on state issues represents the amount of unrecognized tax benefits

that if recognized would favorably affect the Companys effective tax rate in future periods The Company expects to reduce

its unrecognized tax benefits by $1428000 within the next twelve months due to the lapse of the statute of limitations on

certain positions
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reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits is as follows in thousands

Gross unrecognized tax benefits balance at January 2010

Addition for tax positions of current year

Addition for tax positions of prior years

Reduction of tax positions from prior years

Gross unrecognized tax benefits balance at December 31 2010

Addition for tax positions of current year

Addition for tax positions of prior years

Reduction of tax positions from prior years

Gross unrecognized tax benefits balance at December 31 2011

Addition for tax positions of current year

Addition for tax positions of prior years

Reduction of tax jsitions from prior years

Gross unrecognized tax benefits balance at December 31 2012

4874

890

178

1213

4729

832

52

901
4712

933

74

820

4899

The Company recognizes potential interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in the provision for income

taxes At December 31 2012 and 2011 the Company had accrued approximately $710000 and $643000 respectively in

potential interest associated with uncertain tax positions

The tax years 2004 through 2012 remain open to examination by various taxing jurisdictions

reconciliation of the Companys statutory federal income tax rate and the effective tax rate for the years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 is as follows

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

35.0 35.0 35.0

4.4% 4.8% 5.1%

1.6%

0.1% 0.2% 0.9%

1.2% 6.0%

2.4% 4.0% 4.6%

0.2% 0.3 0.5

35.5 37.5 29.1

15 Concentration of Credit Risk

The Companys cash is principally on deposit with three major financial institutions The Company is subject to credit

risk should these financial institutions be unable to fulfill their obligations

Liability for Unrecognized
Tax Benefits

U.S statutory tax rate

State and local income taxes net of federal income taxes

Non-deductibility of asses on securities

Reserve adjustments

Non-taxable gains on securities

Foreign operations tax differential

Other

Effective income tax rate
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The following affiliated fund and third party institutional separate account relationship provided 10 percent or more of

the total revenue of the Company in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Cohen Steers Realty Shares Inc

Investment advisory and administration fees 36853 29731 22375

Percent of total revenue 13% 13% 12%

One Institutional Separate Account Relationship

Investment advisory and administration fees 40904 41538 22219

Portfolio consulting and other 12000 907 208

Total 52904 42445 22427

Percent of total revenue 19% 18% 12%

The table below presents revenue by client domicile for the
years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 in

thousands

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

United States 216985 178105 146854

Non U.S

Japan 41243 41632 22219

Other 15325 17509 14665

Total 273553 237246 183738
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16 Selected Quarterly Financial Data unaudited

The table below presents selected quarterly financial data for 2012 and 2011 The data presented should be read in

conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of Cohen Steers Inc and Managements Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included herein in thousands except per
share data

Quarter

1st 2nd 3rd 4th Total

2012

Revenue 63730 67432 71296 71095 273553

Operating income 25396 26064 12239 32733 96432

Net income attributable to common shareholders 18054 16079 10261 21723 66117

Earnings per share attributable to common
shareholders

Basic 0.41 0.37 0.23 0.50 1.51

Diluted 0.41 0.36 0.23 0.49 1.49

Weighted-average shares outstanding

Basic 43601 43808 43822 43832 43766

Diluted 44386 44393 44537 44609 44482

2011

Revenue 54755 61459 61616 59416 237246

Operating income 18913 22895 22397 22799 87004

Net income attributable to common shareholders 12975 15679 9606 16047 54307

Earnings per
share attributable to common

shareholders

Basic 0.30 0.36 0.22 0.37 1.26

Diluted 0.30 0.36 0.22 0.36 1.23

Weighted-average shares outstanding

Basic 43051 43220 43237 43249 43190

Diluted 43781 43840 44133 44141 43975

17 Subsequent Evenis

The Company has evaluated the need for disclosures and/or adjustments resulting from subsequent events through the

date the financial statements were issued Other than the items described below the Company determined that there were no

additional subsequent events that necessitated disclosures and/or adjustments

On March 13 2C 13 CNS declared quarterly cash dividend on its common stock in the amount of $0.20 per share The

dividend will be payable on April 12 2013 to stockholders of record at the close of business on March 27 2013

In February 2013 the Company completed reorganization of Cohen Steers Europe S.A resulting in the change of

its ownership from CN to Cohen Steers UK Limited This reorganization did not have material impact on the

Companys consolidated financial statements
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Performance data quoted represents past performance Past

performance is no guarantee of future results The investment

return and the principal value of an investment will fluctuate and

shares if sold may be worh more or less than their original cost

The views and opinions in the preceding commentary are as of the

date of publication and are subject to change There is no guarantee

that any market forecast set forth in this presentation will be realized

This material should not be relied upon as investment advice does

not constitute recommendation to buy or sell security or other

investment and is not ntended to predict the performance of any

investment Portfolio holdincs are subject to change without notice

and may not represent current or future portfolio composition

Please consider the investment objectives risks charges and

expenses of any Cohen Steers fund carefully before investing

For Cohen Steers open-end funds summary prospectus and

prospectus containing this aid other infcrmation can be obtained by

calling 800 330 7348 or visiting cohenandsteers.com Please read

the summary prospectus and prospectus carefully before investing

Cohen Steers open-end funds are distributed by Cohen Steers

Securities LLC For Cohen Steers closed-end funds you can

obtain the fund is most recent periodic reports when available and

other regulatory filings by ccntacting your financial advisor or visiting

cohenandsteers corn These reports and other filings can also be found

on the Securities and Exchange Commission is EDGAR Database You

should read these reports and other filings carefully before investing

The funds are subject to stock market risk which is the risk that stock

prices overall will decline over short or lonq periods adversely affecting

the value of an investment in fund Shares of many closed-end funds

frequently trade at discouni from their net asset value

Cohen Steers Investment Strategy Performance

Return information with respect to the core Cohen Steers investment

strategies are derived from Cohen Steers Institutional Composites

Gross returns are stated as cf the period ended December 31 Return

information for Emerging Markets Real Estate Institutional Composite

for the period from 2009 to 2012 only includes return information

beginning February 28 2011 such composites inception date

Major Market Benchmarks

Return information with respect to major market benchmarks Stocks

are represented by the SP 500 Index Bonds are represented by

the Barclays Capital Aggregate Bond Index and Hedge Funds are

represented by the HFRI Equity Hedge Totall Index Gross returns are

stated as of the period ended December 31

Risks of Investing in Preferred Securities

Investing in any market exposes investors to risks In general the risks

of investing in preferred securities are similar to those of investing in

bonds including credit risk arid interest-rare risk As nearly all preferred

securities have issuer call options call risk and reinvestment risk are

also important consideratiors In addition investors face equity-like

risks such as deferral or omission of distributions subordination to

bonds and other more senior debt and higher corporate governance

risks with limited voting rights

Risks associated with preferred securities differ from risks inherent

with other investments In the event of bankruptcy companys

preferred securities are senior to common stock but subordinated to

all other types of corporate debt Corporate bonds sit higher in the

capital structure therefore in the event of bankruptcy will be senior

to preferred securities High-yield bonds although typically issued by

different types of issuers than those that issue preferred securities

and rated below investment grade also would sit higher in firms

capital structure than preferred securities if the issuer did employ

both forms of issuance 10-Year Treasury notes are issued by the U.S

government and are considered the safest of all bonds since they are

backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S government as to the

timely payment of principal and interest

Risks of Investing in Real Assets

real assets strategy is subject to the risk that its asset allocations

may not achieve the desired risk-return characteristic underperform

other similar investment strategies or cause an investor to lose money

The risks of investing in REITs are similar to those associated with

direct investments in real estate securities Property values may fall

due to increasing vacancies declining rents resulting from economc

legal tax political or technological developments lack of liquidity

limited diversification and sensitivity to certain economic factors such

as interest rate changes and market recessions An investment in

commodity-linked derivative instruments may be subject to greater

volatility than investments in traditional securities particularly if the

instruments involve leverage.The value of commodity-linked derivative

instruments may be affected by changes in overall market movements

commodity index volatility changes in interest rates or factors affecting

particular industry or commodity such as drought floods weather

livestock disease embargoes tariffs and international economic

political and regulatory developments The use of derivatives presents

risks different from and possibly greater than the risks associated

with investing directly in traditional securities Among the risks

presented are market risk credit risk counterparty risk leverage risk

and liquidity risk The use of derivatives can lead to losses because of

adverse movements in the price or value of the underlying asset index

or rate which may be magnified by certain features of the derivatives

The market value of securities of natural resource companies may be

affected by numerous factors including events occurring in nature

inflationary pressures and international politics Because the strategy

invests significantly in natural resource companies there is the risk

that the strategy will perform poorly during downturn in the natural

resource sector

Risks of Investing in Real Estate Securities

Risks of investing in real estate securities are similar to those

associated with direct investments in real estate including falling

property values due to increasing vacancies or declining rents resulting

from economic legal political or technological developments lack of

liquidity limited diversification and sensitivity to certain economic

factors such as interest rate changes and market recessions Foreign

securities involve special risks including currency fluctuations lower

liquidity political and economic uncertainties and differences in
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accounting standards Some international securities may represent

small- and medium-sized companies which may be more susceptible

to price volatility and less liquid than larger companies Securities of

companies in emerging markets may be more volatile than those of

companies in more developed markets Emerging market countries

generally have less develcped markets and economies and in some

countries less mature gcvernments and governmental institutions

Investing in securities of companies in emerging markets may entail

special risks relating to potential economic political or social instability

and the risks of expropriation nationalization confiscation or the

imposition of restrictions on foreign investment the lack of hedging

instruments and on repatriation of capital invested.The securities and

real estate markets of some emerging market countries have in the past

sometimes experienced substantial market disruptions and may do so

in the future.The economies of many emerging markets countries may

be heavily dependent on inernational trade and accordingly have been

and may continue to be adversely affected by trade barriers exchange

controls managed adjustnents in relative currency values and other

protectionist measures imposed or negotiated by the countries with

which they wish to trade

Risks of Investing in Large Cap Value Securities

The value of common stocks and other equity securities will fluctuate

in response to developmEnts concerning the company political and

regulatory circumstances the stock market and the economy In the

short term stock prices can fluctuate dramatically in response to

these developments Different parts of the market and different types

of equity securities can reEct differently to these developments.These

developments can affect single company all companies within

the same industry economic sector or geographic region or the

stock market as whole Dividend-paying stocks may be particularly

sensitive to changes in market interest rates and prices may decline

as rates rise Special risks of investing in foreign securities include

Ii currency fluctuations lower liquidity liii political and economic

uncertainties and ivl differences in accounting standards Some

international securities nay represent small- and medium-sized

companies which may be more susceptible to price volatility and less

liquid than larger companies

Risks of Investing in Global Infrastructure Securities

Infrastructure issuers may be subject to regulation by various

governmental authorities and may also be affected by governmental

regulation of rates charged to customers operational or other mishaps

tariffs and changes in ta laws regulatory policies and accounting

standards Foreign securit es involve special risks including currency

fluctuation and lower liquifity Some global securities may represent

small- and medium-sized companies which may be more susceptible

to price volatility than largEr companies



CORPORATE INFORMATION

Corporate Headquarters

Cohen Steers Inc

280 Park Avenue

New York NY 10017

212 832 3232

Stock Listing

Cohen Steers Inc CNS common stock is traded on the New

York Stock Exchange under the symbol CNS At the close of business

on March 2013 there were 29 common shareholders of record

Common shareholders include institutioi-ial and omnibus accounts

that hold shares of common stock for numerous underlying investors

Beneficial owners of our co-nmon stock whose shares are held in

the street name of bank broker or oter holder of record are not

included in the number of common shareholders of record

Internet Information

Information on Cohen Steers financial reports and its products and

services is available on the Internet at cohenandsteers.com

Financial Information

Cohen Steers makes available free of charge through its website

cohenandsteers.com under the heading Company/SEC Filings

its Annual Reports on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on Form 10-0

Current Reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports

as soon as is reasonably practicable after they are electronically filed

with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission the

SECl Further Cohen Staers will provide free of charge to each

shareholder upon written request copy of its Annual Reports on

Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on Form 10-0 Current Reports on Form

8-K and all amendments to those reports Requests for copies should

be addressed to Salvatore Rappa senior vice president and associate

general counsel Cohen Seers Inc 280 Park Avenue New York

NY 10017 Requests may also be directed to 212 832 3232 or via

e-mail to srappa@cohenandsteers.com Copies may also be accessed

electronically by means of the SECs Web site at www.sec.gov

Corporate Governance at Cohen Steers

Cohen Steers Corporate Governance Guidelines and additional

information about Cohen Steers board and its committees and

corporate governance at Cohen Steers are posted on the corporate

governance section of the Company page of the Cohen Steers

website at cohenandsteers.com Shareholders who would ike to

request printed copies of the Cohen Steers Code of Business

Conduct and Ethics or the charters of the boards Audit Nominating

and Corporate Governance or Compensation Committees all of which

are posted on the Cohen Steers website may do so by sending their

requests to Salvatore Rappa senior vice president and associate general

counsel Cohen Steers Inc 280 Park Avenue NewYork NY 10017

Inquiries

Analysts institutional investors individual shareholders news media

representatives and others seeking general information should contact

Matthew Stadler chief financial officer at 212 832 3232 or via e-mail

at mstadler@cohenandsteers.com

Annual Shareholders Meeting

All shareholders are invited to attend the Cohen Steers annual

shareholders meeting on Wednesday May 2013 beginning at

900 am Eastern Time The meeting will be held at our corporate

headquarters located at 280 Park Avenue New York NY 10017

Dividend Policy

Cohen Steers currently pays quarterly cash dividend at rate of

$0.20 per share.The declaration and payment of dividends to holders of

common stock by Cohen Steers if any are subject to the discretion

of its board of directors The board of directors will take into account

such matters as general economic and business conditions our

strategic plans our financial results and condition contractual legal and

regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends by Cohen Steers

and its subsidiaries and such other factors as the board of directors

may consider to be relevant

Registrar and Transfer Agent

Computershare is the transfer agent and registrar for CNS and

maintains shareholder accounting records The transfer agent should

be contacted on questions of change in address name or ownership

lost certificates and consolidation of accounts

Please contact

Computershare

P0 Box 43006

Providence RI 02940-3006

Toll-free United States 866 282 3779

Foreign shareholders 201 680 6578

Hearing-impaired 312 588 4110

Web Address www.cpushareownerservices.com

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Deloitte Touche LLP

Two World Financial Center

NewYork NY 10281
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Common Stock Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative total shareholder return

on our common stock from December 31 2007 through December

31 2012 with the cumulative total return of the Standard Poors

500 Stock Index SP 500 and the SNL Asset Manager lndex.The

graph assumes the investment of $100 in our common stock and in

each of the two indices on December 31 2007 and the reinvestment

of all dividends if any The following information has been obtained

from sources believed to be reliable but neither its accuracy nor its

completeness is guaranteed.The performance graph is not necessarily

indicative of future investment performance

Total Return Performance

150

SNL Asset Manager Index

Period Ended

12/31/09 12/31/10Index 12/31/07 12/31/08 12/31/11 12/31/12

Cohen Steers Inc 100.00 3784 79.62 101.71 118.18 134.19

SNL Asset Manager 100.00 4752 7710 88.75 76.76 98.48

SP 500 10000 63.00 79.68 91.68 93.61 108.59

The SNL Asset Manager lnder currently comprises the following companies

Affiliated Managers Group Inc AllianceBernstein Holding LA Apollo Global

Management LLC Artio Global Investors Inc BlackRock Inc Blackstone Group

LA Brookfield Asset Management Inc Calamos Asset Management Inc

The Carlyle Group LA Cohen Steers Inc Diamond Hill Investment Group

Inc Eaton Vance Corp Epoch Holding Corporation Federated Investors Inc

Financial Engines Inc Fortress Investment Group LLC Franklin Resources Inc

GAMCO Investors Inc Hennsssy Advisors Inc lnvesco Ltd Janus Capital

Group Inc KKR Co LP Leçg Mason Inc Manning Napier Inc Oaktree

Capital Group LLC Och-Ziff Cajital Management Group LLC Pzena Investment

Management Inc Resource Pmerica Inc SEI Investments Company Rowe

Price Group Inc U.S Global Investors Inc Value Line Inc Virtus Investment

Partners Inc Waddell Reed Financial Inc Westwood Holdings Group Inc

and WisdomTree Investments Inc

In accordance with the rules of the SEC this Common Stock

Performance Graph shall not be incorporated by reference into

any future filings by us under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

as amended the Exchange Act or under the Securities Act of

1933 as amended the Securities Act and shall not be deemed

to be soliciting material or to be filed under the Securities Act or the

Exchange Act

Common Stock Prices

The tables below set forth by quarter the range of high and ow sale

and quarter-end closing prices for CNS and the cash dividends declared

per common share as reported on the NewYork Stock Exchange

Three Months Ended 2012 March31 June30 September30 December31

High price $35.00 $35.83 $38.00 $31.72

Low price $29.28 $29.90 $29.56 $26.84

Closing price $31.90 $34.51 $29.62 $30.47

Cash dividend $0.18 $0.18 $0.18 $1.68

declared per share

Three Months Ended 2011 March31 June30 September30 December31

High price
$30.15 $33.82 $40.93 $29.90

Low price
$24.63 $2756 $28.45 $23.79

Closing price
$29.68 $33.15 $28.75 $28.90

Cash dividend $0.15 $0.15 $1.15 $0.15

declared per share

125

100

75

50

25 Sp 500

12/31/07 12/31/08 12/31/09 12/31/10 12/31/11 12/31/12

The Company declared special extraordinary dividends in the amount of $1.50 and

$1.00 per share respectively on November 2012 and August 2011

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

On the inside cover of this Annual Report we disclose earnings

per share attributable to common shareholders for the year ended

December 31 2012 adjusted to exclude the effect of previously

disclosed after-tax expenses of approximately $0.21 per share

associated primarily with the offering of LDP reconciliation of this

non-GAAP financial measure to the most directly comparable financial

measure calculated and presented in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States is included on the

inside front cover of this Annual Report
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